
 

Please contact Lynn Cairns on 0151 471 7529 or e-mail 
lynn.cairns@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Thursday, 7 February 2008 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

PART 1 
 
 

Item Page No 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and (subject to certain exceptions in the Code of 
Conduct for Members) to leave the meeting prior to discussion 
and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) OUT-BOROUGH SCHOOL TRANSPORT   
 

1 - 4 

 (B) STRATEGY FOR SUPPORT AND INTERVENTION 
FOR SCHOOLS IN HALTON   

 

5 - 21 

Executive Board 
 
Thursday, 24 January 2008 2.00 p.m. 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  
Item Page No 
  

 

4. LEADER'S PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) CPA CORPORATE ASSESSMENT AND JOINT 
AREA REVIEW OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE   

 

22 - 25 

5. PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION, REGENERATION AND 
RENEWAL PORTFOLIO 

 

 

 (A) NORTH WEST DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (NWDA) 
CORPORATE PLAN 2008   

 

26 - 84 

 
 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 1

REPORT TO: Executive Board 
 
DATE: 24th January 2008 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director 
 Children and Young People 
 
SUBJECT: Out-Borough School Transport  
 
WARDS: Runcorn Wards  
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Executive Board’s approval to 
withdraw two bus services currently operating between Halton and 
Frodsham and Helsby High Schools in Cheshire.  It is proposed that 
these services should be withdrawn from September 2008 as the 
Council is subsidising them to the sum of circa £36,400 annually, the 
cost being borne from the Children and Young People Directorate’s 
mainstream home to school transport budget. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 

 
(1) The report be received 
 
(2) Approval is given to: 

 
i) Withdraw the two bus services from the end of the Summer 

Term 2008 and, 
ii) Issue a letter to parents advising them of the withdrawal of the 

service 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
  
3.1 Halton Borough Council has, since attaining unitary status in April 1998, 

provided assistance with transport for Halton resident pupils attending 
Frodsham and Helsby High Schools by operating two buses from Halton 
to Frodsham and Helsby.  Prior to unitary status Runcorn was part of 
Cheshire County Council and, as such, parents could express 
preferences for their children to attend Frodsham and Helsby High 
School.  The schools, at that time, being within their home authority.  
This was on the proviso that the children met the admissions criteria, and 
secured a place at the school.   

 
3.2 During the Local Government Review process, it was agreed that in 

order to continue to facilitate the attendance of those children at 
Frodsham and Helsby schools until the end of their school career, the 
services would continue to operate with financial assistance being given 
to those already attending.  In subsequent years parents who expressed 

Agenda Item 3aPage 1



 2

a preference for Frodsham and Helsby Schools have had the opportunity 
to purchase any remaining spare seats on these services, the cost being 
paid by the parent to Halton Borough Council.   

 
3.3 The number of children receiving assistance from the Council has 

declined, nevertheless, through parental preference, Halton resident 
parents have continued to gain admission to Frodsham and Helsby High 
Schools and the bus service has continued to operate.  There are no 
children receiving financial assistance from Halton Borough Council 
under the School Transport Policy to travel to these schools, but there 
are a small number of remaining pupils using the service and Halton 
Borough Council currently subsidises the bus service at a cost of 
£36,400 per annum. 

 
3.4 For the 2007/8 academic year there are 15 children using the service 

who attend Frodsham High School, and 24 children using the service 
who attend Helsby High School.  From September 2008 it is anticipated 
that there will be 10 attending Frodsham High School, and 16 attending 
Helsby High School. 

 
3.5 The proposal is to withdraw the two bus services from the end of the 

Summer Term 2008, which will affect a total of 26 children.  Transport 
Co-ordination have drawn up individual school travel plans for the 
children affected by the withdrawal of the service and the suggested 
Travel Plans would be included with any correspondence to parents 
advising them of the cessation of the service. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  The Children & Young People’s Sustainable School Transport Policy 

makes no reference to the provision of transport for Halton resident 
pupils whose parents have expressed a preference for their child to 
attend non-denominational out-borough schools, therefore there are no 
policy implications.  By withdrawing the services currently offered, the 
Council will make financial savings of approximately £36,400 per year.   

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  None. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

Savings made from the cessation of the service will allow the funding to 
be used to support children and young people attending Halton Schools. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
  
 None. 

Page 2



 3

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
  
 None. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 
 None. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
 None. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
7.1  The Council has a duty to protect public funds and ensure Best Value for 

money.  By ceasing the services described the Council is fulfilling this 
obligation.  The Council has drawn up Individual travel plans for those 
pupils affected, and it remains the parent’s responsibility to ensure their 
child’s attendance at school. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1  Parents may continue to express a preference for either a Halton School 

or for schools in neighbouring authorities.  The Council will continue to 
provide assistance with transport where required to do so by law and in 
accordance with the Council’s Sustainable School Transport Policy 
which actually offers enhancements beyond the statutory requirements.  
From September 2008 children from low-income families will also 
receive extended rights to assistance with transport.  The Council is in a 
position to suggest alternative travel arrangements for those parents 
requiring assistance. 

 
9.0 REASON FOR DECISION 
 
9.1 The Council is currently funding a service that impacts upon the School 

Transport Budget and supports the transportation of pupils to out-
borough non-denominational schools when those children could be 
educated in Halton schools. 

 
10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
10.1 None. 
 
11.0 IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
 
11.1 September 2008. 

Page 3



 4

 
12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
12.1 None. 
 

Page 4



JK Dec 07 

        
REPORT TO: Executive Board  
 
DATE: 24th January 2008  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Children and Young 

People 
 
SUBJECT: Strategy for Support and Intervention for 

Schools in Halton 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 The purpose of this paper is to set out the methodology for co-ordinating 

the Local Authority’s Support and Intervention Strategy for schools 
causing concern. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  

 
2.1 That the Executive Board approves the Strategy for Support and 

Intervention for Schools in Halton. 
 

2.2 That the Strategic Director Children and Young People be authorised to 
take any decisions available to the Council under Part 4 of the Education 
and Inspections Act 2006. 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:  

 
3.1 The Education and Inspections Act 2006 outlines in Part 4 new powers for 

a Local Authority to intervene and take action and provide support to 
schools causing concern.  This builds on existing statutory powers and 
good practice to ensure that every pupil is provided with the education and 
opportunities that they deserve. 
 

3.2 To support this Act, new statutory guidance has been issued. 
 

3.3 The Act gives Local Authorities new powers to enable earlier intervention 
and take more decisive action and bring more support to bear to address 
school underperformance and remove the possibility of poor standards.  
The powers include: 
 

• Authorities will have a new power to force a weak school to 
federate or take another partner for school improvement; 

• The ability of Authorities to warn under performing schools and to 
intervene in them when necessary is strengthened; and  

Agenda Item 3bPage 5



JK Dec 07 

• Authorities will have a duty to consider taking action immediately 
whenever a maintained school fails an inspection, and must 
reconsider action if progress is deemed unnecessary. 

 
3.4 The Local Authority has consulted with schools on the proposed Local 

Authority procedures for identifying and intervening in schools causing 
concern, with a view to a revised policy being approved by Executive 
Board (see Appendix A).  

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no direct financial implications arising from this policy. However 
should a specific school require additional support this would be resourced 
through “Intervention Grants”. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

School failure can result in young people not being prepared for future life 
opportunities. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

Achieving high standards within schools equips young people for future 
life. 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
 Not directly from this report. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 
 Not directly from this report. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
  
 Not directly from this report. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
7.1 Failure to take this decision would mean that the Local Authority has no 

agreed procedure to exercise its statutory powers in relation to schools 
causing concern.  The Local Authority’s ability to secure improvement in 
specific schools would therefore be limited. There are a range of ways of 
risk evaluating school performance available to the Local Authority. 

 

Page 6



JK Dec 07 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 All pupils are entitled to have access to high quality teaching and learning 
experiences.  School failure and underperformance impacts negatively on 
pupil’s life chances. 

 
9.0 REASON(S) FOR DECISION 
 
9.1 Strengthened powers of intervention to prevent school failure and       

underperformance is a key component of the Education and Inspections 
Act 2006.  Local Authorities are expected to demonstrate deployment of 
these powers where appropriate. 

 
10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

 
The Council is duty bound to implement the requirements of the Education 
and Inspections Act 2006. 

 
11.0 IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
 

January 2008. 
 

12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 

 
Strategy for Support 
and Intervention 

Grosvenor House Judith Kirk 

Statutory Guidance 
on Schools Causing 
Concern 
 

Grosvenor House  Judith Kirk 

 

Page 7



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 1

Strategy for Support and Intervention for Schools in Halton 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 

Halton Local Authority has a commitment to excellence in Education and believes that 
all children and young people deserve to be educated in successful schools. Our 
overall aim is that no school should fall into a category of concern. By supporting and 
enabling strong school leadership and management and early intervention when 
necessary, we aim to work in partnership with schools to bring about the best possible 
education for our children and young people.  
The Local Authority (LA) policy is in line with the Department for Children, Schools and 
Families (DCSF) Revised Statutory Guidance for Schools Causing Concern. It takes 
account of the guidance in relation to those schools that are failing to provide an 
acceptable level of education to pupils and are a cause of concern. The LA will work 
within the New Relationship with Schools (NRwS) and collaboratively with National 
Strategies, DCSF and Ofsted, making use of School Improvement Partners (SIPs). 
This policy will: 
o Explain what a school can expect from the Local Authority in terms of procedures 

in relation to schools causing concern. 
o Explain what the Local Authority can expect from a school in terms of procedures 

relating to schools causing concern. 
 
1.1  The aims are: 
 

• to show a relentless commitment to raising standards through high quality 
learning, teaching and leadership based on self-evaluation and self-
improvement; 

• to identify and disseminate best practice and challenge all schools to build upon 
this exemplification through collaboration 

• where appropriate, support schools to federate 

• to intervene early and establish constructive dialogue seeking self-remediation 
with advice but to use powers to warn schools where improvement is not 
sufficient; 

• to use clear criteria where identifying schools causing concern, with particular 
emphasis on schools that are under-performing in relation to their pupil intake 
and general context; 

• to provide a co-ordinated support from appropriate sections of Children and 
Young People’s Directorate (CYPD), targeted at those issues which bring about 
speedy improvement; 

• to build the capacity of school leadership and management so that it is secure 
enough to generate self-improvement; 

• to work in constructive partnership with Diocesan Authorities and other 
appropriate partners; 

• to ensure that, where a school is causing concern, account is taken of the 
School Organisation data to arrive at a judgement regarding continued viability; 

• to enable failing schools to be quickly removed from Special Measures and 
those with a Notice to Improve to address issues promptly; 

• to be decisive in using the full range of intervention powers if schools are not 
making adequate progress. 

Page 8



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 2

2.0  Education and Inspections Act 2006  
 

‘Schools causing concern must make rapid improvements, so that the negative impact 
the school’s poor performance may have on a pupils’ outcomes is minimised. Local 
Authorities should therefore continue to take fast, decisive action to secure 
improvements at schools which Ofsted judges to require Special Measures or 
Significant Improvement’ (DfES 2007 www.standards.dfes.gov.uk/sie/si/SCC/). 
 
The Education and Inspections Act of 2006 outlines in Part 4 new legislation on LA 
powers of intervention covering action and support on schools causing concern. This 
builds on existing statutory powers and good practice to ensure that every pupil is 
provided with the education and opportunities that they deserve.  
 
The Act includes provision to ensure earlier action to address underperformance in 
schools through more prompt and timely use by Local Authorities of the powers set 
out in the Act to challenge, and where necessary intervene, where a school is not able 
to address underperformance itself. Local Authorities are expected to take robust 
action to tackle failure, and to challenge and support schools. Where schools have 
been deemed by Ofsted to be in a category, the Act sets out the expectation that 
action to address weaknesses will lead to faster improvement than has been the case 
in the past. 
 
Namely: 

• authorities have a new power to force a weak school to federate or take 
another partner for school improvement; 

• the ability of authorities to warn under performing schools and to intervene in 
them when necessary will be strengthened; 

• authorities have a duty to consider taking action immediately whenever a 
maintained school fails an inspection, and must reconsider action if progress is 
deemed unsatisfactory. 

 
This policy, therefore, sets out to explain what intervention Halton LA can provide in 
schools that they see as being a cause for concern i.e. schools which the LA itself 
judges to be failing to provide an adequate standard of education, or to need 
significant improvements, or which are at risk of not meeting the Government’s floor 
targets for attainment. 
 
Schools may not necessarily have been judged as requiring a category from 
Ofsted but the LA may feel it necessary to intervene in order to prevent future 
categorisation.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 3

3.0  Categories of support 
 
There are four categories of support to schools: 
 
Core Support, which covers most schools  
 
Vulnerable Schools – support without which a school might become a cause for 
concern 
 
Schools Causing Concern (SCC) – i.e. designated by Ofsted as requiring either 
Special Measures or a Notice to Improve or those where the LA feels such 
classification is appropriate 
 
Formal Intervention in respect of SCC that do not improve enough 
 

3.1 Category A: Core support 
Schools in this category are generally successful in sustaining improvement through 
self-evaluation and can be a source of good practice. SIPs will broker additional 
support from the LA or elsewhere. Support from the LA will be light touch. 
 

3.2 Category B and C: Vulnerable Schools and Schools Causing Concern 

Vulnerable Schools are those not actually causing concern but requiring significant 
amount of support to help them improve. The aim is prevention – to stop the school 
becoming a concern. It is essential that schools are drawn into support at an early 
stage and that their own evidence of performance, and the context within which they 
operate, is taken account of, Vulnerable schools will be expected  to show at least 
satisfactory improvement within 6 – 12 months. 
 

As a result of reviews, or following support work in a vulnerable school, the LA 
reserves the right to issue a warning notice to the school, which acts as a Notice to 
Improve; the issue of a Notice to Improve is most likely where the response to support 
is showing that issues for improvement are inadequately addressed. 
 
A Notice to Improve will directly put a school into the next category and it will 
be designated as a School Causing Concern (SCC). 
 
3.3 Schools Causing Concern are of two types: those with a Notice to Improve 
and those which are failing their pupils and equivalent to an Ofsted inspection 
designation of Special Measures. A school with a Notice to Improve will be 
expected to remedy the weaknesses within 12 – 14 months. Failure to do so will 
usually result in the school being classed as being equivalent to Special 
Measures. For Schools in Special Measures, it is expected that significant 
improvement will take place in one year and that the designation will be 
removed in no more that two years. 
 
The defining characteristic between the two types of SCC is the capacity for 
improvement. Where a school has Notice to Improve, then it is judged to have the 
internal capacity to improve with support, despite the serious weaknesses. Where a 
school is equivalent to Special Measures, it is judged that it does not have the 
capacity to improve. The LA can designate a school as failing its pupils and a cause 

Page 10



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 4

for concern equivalent to Special Measures without waiting for an Ofsted inspection 
where LA monitoring shows this to be warranted. It is the responsibility of the 
Operational Director for Universal and Learning Services, acting on information and 
advice provided by SIPs, advisers and officers, to place a school in any school 
causing concern category or to remove it from that category. Evidence that removal is 
justified is likely to be based on clear improvement against the criteria listed in the 
improvement plan and judgements will take into account the school’s capacity to 
improve. 
 
For schools that are either vulnerable or a cause for concern, the quality of information 
available is an important element in determining categorisation and the type of support 
required. In addition, a clear process is needed to enable support to have impact. The 
aim will be to share the evidence with Headteacher, governors and, as appropriate, 
others in the school community. Problems can arise in schools gradually or very 
rapidly when a number of complex problems occur simultaneously. 
 
 

3.4 Information that will define vulnerability or trigger a cause for concern 
 
Achievement data 

• Pupil data showing contextual value added, performance over time and relation 
to targets. Critically, it will be used to check if the school is in the bottom 
percentile on one or more key performance indicators. It will be scrutinised to 
see if the school is in a declining trend for the second or subsequent years on a 
number of indicators. Significant underachievement by a large proportion of 
pupils or particular groups of pupils will be taken into account, especially in the 
core subjects and in relation to contextual value added. 

 
Inclusion evidence and information on pupil engagement, behaviour and 
wellbeing 

• Poor attendance and behaviour not dealt with adequately by the school 

• Significant shortcomings in provision for pupils with Learning Difficulties and 
Disabilities (LDD) 

• Concerns regarding the safeguarding of pupils 

• Matters of health and safety which place individuals at serious risk of harm 

• Significant concerns regarding inclusive practice. 
 
Leadership and Management Information 

• The effectiveness of leadership and management as judged against Ofsted 
criteria and taking account of the capacity to improve 

• The quality of school self-evaluation (including the self-evaluation form) and 
improvement planning 

• The quality of performance management and continuous professional 
development 

• The quality of internal relationships which might be poor where there is a 
breakdown in communications, morale or a sense of coherent direction 

• Financial information including evidence of financial misconduct or neglect 

• Levels of sickness absence and staff turnover 

• Consistent failure to discharge statutory duties. 

Page 11



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 5

Evidence in relation to learning and teaching quality 

• The quality of teaching particularly where there are significant amounts of 
inadequate teaching – normally 10% or more 

• How well learners acquire new knowledge and skills and make progress in 
lessons and over time 

• The quality of assessment including the effective use of information to track 
pupil progress, set targets and improve learning 

• The quality of the curriculum including its relevance, breadth and balance, 
taking account of the aptitude and abilities of the pupils 

• The equality of opportunity provided for all pupils to learn and make progress in 
relation to their capabilities. 

 
Other Evidence 

• Significant levels of harassment or racial tension 

• Gross misconduct resulting in quantifiable incapacity to effectively deliver the 
curriculum which prejudices the future viability of the school 

• A less than satisfactory response to previous support and insufficient progress 
in addressing areas for which this support was given 

• A high level of concern / complaints raised by parents / carers in the local 
community 

 
3.5 Schools will be classed as a cause for concern when there are significant 
weaknesses in a combination of the above key factors. Information is drawn from a 
number of sources including: 
 

• SIP and LA Adviser / officer notes of visit, particularly in relation to the schools 
capacity to improve, leadership and management, and the quality of teaching, 
learning and the curriculum 

• Information from the school self-evaluation and resultant action plans 

• Joint LA / School review including direct observation 
 
3.6 The nature of a review will vary according to the issues at the school. Not all 
reviews will include observation of teaching and learning as the evidence on 
this might be clear and this might not be the area that requires improvement. 
Overall the process is: 
 
Audit and review to gather evidence and establish priorities for support 
This will comprise of a Joint LA / School review where a team of advisers and other 
officers where appropriate, establish with the school an evidence base of the key 
issues faced and, consequently the support required. This will comprise: 
 

• Pre-review commentary shared with the school that sets out the evidence and 
key questions 

 

• A review in the school to gather firsthand evidence 
 

• A post-review report to the Headteacher and governors 
 

Page 12



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 6

This review will draw on: the schools use of self-review tools, SEF, Ofsted and other 
appropriate documentation. Evaluations will be shared with the school and school self-
review information will form an important part of this process as it indicates the 
school’s capacity to improve, Review will be co-ordinated by a LA adviser and in 
consultation with the SIP and school leadership. 
 
Planned improvement support 
A Raising Achievement Plan (RAP) will be agreed between the school and the LA. 
This should compliment the School Development Plan (SDP). It will set out the key 
objectives to be achieved, actions to be undertaken, success measures, professional 
development needs, timescales and resources to be allocated. The Senior School 
Effectiveness Officers and Strategy Managers will ensure that any support provided 
following the review is coherent and co-ordinated. 
 
Monitoring and evaluation of agreed success against the RAP with progress 
reported to governors at least once each term. The School Adviser will monitor and 
assess the impact of any support, taking into account the RAP and the success 
criteria within it. 
 
3.7 The likely areas to be reviewed and supported are set out below but reviews will 
vary according to school needs and circumstances and will depend on progress 
against action plan objectives: 
  
Standards of achievement 
Account will be taken of performance over time, in relation to targets and contextual 
value added indicators. Particular consideration will be given to pupils at risk of 
underachieving, vulnerable pupils (including Children in Care) and those with LDD. 
Attendance will be taken as a key indicator. 
 
Leadership and Management 
The evidence to evaluate leadership and management will come from School 
Improvement Partner notes of visit, the school self-review, Ofsted reports or from Joint 
LA / School review. Where a Joint LA / School review evaluates leadership, it will be 
based on Ofsted criteria. The criteria for leadership apply to all of those with 
leadership responsibilities: Headteacher, Governing Body, Senior Management and 
others as appropriate. A key task will be to support the capacity-building for 
improvement. This will be especially important where there has been significant 
change in leadership or where there is a long-term absence of key staff or workforce 
pressures such as recruitment and retention. 
 
Learning and Teaching 
The aim of this support will be to improve the quality of learning and teaching, 
throughout a school, at a Key Stage or in particular subjects or year groups. Evidence 
to evaluate the quality of learning and teaching will come from school self-review, SIP, 
Adviser and LA Consultant notes of visit, Ofsted reports and Joint LA / School review. 
In judging the quality of learning and teaching, Joint LA / School review will take 
account of Ofsted criteria. Teaching will be evaluated in terms of the impact it has on 
learning. 
 
 

Page 13



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 7

Attendance and behaviour 
Evidence that might generate support would come from analysis of attendance and 
exclusion data. The support will be provided by EWS, Access Service and Behaviour 
and Attendance Consultants. 
 
Pupils’ wellbeing, care, guidance and support 
Evidence generated from SIP and Adviser notes of visit, school self-review and 
information in Ofsted reports would be used to judge if there was vulnerability in this 
area. 
 
3.8 The LA Cross-Service Monitoring Group (CSMG) checks the progress of all 
vulnerable schools and SCC to enable decisions to be made which schools 
move in and out of these categories, taking account of the triggers and 
information listed above. 

• The CSMG meets each term; it consists of senior officers and advisers 

• The CSMG will give particular consideration to Vulnerable Schools and SCC 
but will also review provision of other schools at the recommendation of the 
Operational Director (Universal and Learning Service) 

• Schools under discussion will normally be notified 

• Prior to CSMG meetings, the LA will gather evidence of the type set out above 
and this will form the basis of information taken to the CSMG 

• Following meetings of the CSMG, schools will be informed of categorisation 
changes by the Operational Director (Universal and Learning) 

• The progress of SCC will be discussed on a regular basis at CYPD SMT 
meetings 

• Progress of SCC will be reported to the Members Policy and Performance 
Board 

• It is anticipated that open exchanges of information and ongoing dialogue 
should ensure that situations rarely occur where the school does not agree with 
the category of concern in which it is placed. However, where the Headteacher 
and / or the Governing Body do not agree that there are concerns at the level 
indicated, the Operational Director (Universal and Learning Services) will visit 
the school and clarify the nature and degree of concern. 

• The aim will always be to seek early and constructive dialogue with the 
Headteacher, Chair of Governors and, as appropriate, the full Governing Body 
or Sub-Committee. 

 
Where a school is a cause for concern, it will receive a commensurate amount of 
support, challenge and monitoring, including Joint LA / School review as appropriate, 
which will be reported to the Governing Body. 
 
In addition to the above, for all vulnerable schools and SCC, a Partnership 
Improvement Board (PIB) will review progress. At these meetings the school will also 
be represented and as improvement increases the school will be expected to take the 
initiative. This is to avoid undue reliance on the LA.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 8

4. Formal Warning Notice / Intervention Category D 
 
The move to formal warning / intervention will apply in rare circumstances. It is 
relevant only to those schools with significant concerns that fail to address their 
responsibilities, despite extensive support having been provided by the LA. The 
decision to move to this level will be taken after full consultation with the school and 
other appropriate authorities. In making the decision, the LA will seek to establish 
whether the situation at the school is at least comparable in seriousness to a finding 
by Ofsted of Special Measures. 
 
The LA is committed to working with schools to secure improvement, but will comply 
with its duty to undertake formal intervention, including, where appropriate, the 
appointment of additional governors, suspension of the delegated budget, federation 
and closure. 
 
A school becomes ‘eligible for intervention’ – the term used in the Education and 
Inspection Act  2006 to denote schools subject to the spectrum of intervention powers 
– if the governing body has received a formal warning and has failed to comply with it 
to the Local Authority’s satisfaction. 
 
The Local Authority must have provided reasonable written notice to the governing 
body that intervention is being contemplated. When a notice is issued, it must inform 
them of their right to appeal to Ofsted within the initial period of 15 working days. The 
school can avoid intervention if Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector (HMCI) decides not to 
confirm the warning notice following representations from the governing body. The 
governing body has a further period of 15 working days to respond appropriately to the 
warning notice starting immediately after the initial period or when HMCI confirms the 
notice if an appeal has been made. 
 
4.1 Warning Notices 
(from DfES Guidance relating to Part 4 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006: 
provisions relating to schools causing concern) 
 
Establishing the grounds for a warning notice 
A warning notice can be triggered by any of the following circumstances: 

1. The standards of performance at the school are unacceptably low, and are 
likely to remain so unless the local authority exercises its statutory intervention 
powers 

2. There has been a serious breakdown in management or governance which is 
prejudicing, or likely to prejudice, standards of performance 

3. The safety of pupils or staff at the school is threatened (whether by a 
breakdown in discipline or otherwise) 

Warning notices should only be used where there is evidence to justify both the LA’s 
concerns and the school's reluctance to address these concerns through a 
professional dialogue with the Local Authority via the SIP within a reasonable 
timeframe. 
 
Local Authorities must draw on suitable qualitative data in addition to any quantitative 
information before deciding to issue a warning notice. 
 

Page 15



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 9

4.2 Evidence of unacceptably low standards 
 
The definition of when standards are 'unacceptably low' is extended from the previous 
provision. The 2006 Act states that a warning notice can be issued if pupil 
performance is persistently below levels expected when pupils' prior achievement and 
the school's context is taken into account, even if the absolute level of attainment is 
apparently satisfactory. 

 
Quantitative evidence may take one of the following forms; usually a combination of 
several of these indicators will apply: 

a. The school's data set, as agreed by the school, the Local Authority and the SIP, 
indicates there are problems in relation to pupil progress  

b. The school is in the bottom quartile nationally in one or more key performance 
indicators. These will focus on Context Value Added (CVA) data, but could also 
include, for example, low attainment rates, aggregate point scores, or exclusion 
and truancy data 

c. There is specific evidence, from close examination of contextual data or other 
sources that the school is significantly letting down groups of pupils (usually 5% 
or more of the school population), or is very weak in core subjects. 

 
Some educational settings, especially Special Schools and Pupil Referral Units, may 
have little standardised data. In these cases, SIPs and Local Authorities will have to 
rely on other records, such as how well learners have met their individual targets. 
 
4.3 Evidence of a breakdown in leadership or management 
Key sources of information to justify a warning notice under criterion (b) are likely to be 
the SIPs report, particularly the commentary on the quality of the school's self-
evaluation and target-setting, and Ofsted reports. 
 
In addition, some data trends may indicate a breakdown in leadership and 
management, for example: 

• Declining school popularity, usually revealed through falling rolls 

• High or increasing absence or truancy rates 

• High rates of staff turnover, or numbers of staff grievances 

• Significant or increasing numbers of parental complaints. 
 
Such data should be treated with caution, as they may also arise for reasons other 
than poor school leadership. Local Authorities should therefore ensure that such 
indicators are confirmed by strong intelligence from sources such as SIPs or Ofsted 
reports before considering a warning notice. Where such reports are unavailable, data 
trends should be considered only as the first signs of concern which should prompt the 
local authority to investigate further, perhaps through an audit of the school's 
leadership. 
 
Poor management of the school workforce, or a failure to implement the school 
workforce agreement, may contribute to a school's poor performance, and may 
therefore be used as the grounds for issuing a warning notice. 
 
 
 

Page 16



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 10 

4.4 Exceptions to (a) and (b) above 
 
Even where the evidence referred to in parts (a) or (b) above exists, a warning notice 
is unlikely to be needed when the school is already working positively to address poor 
performance, and there is evidence of progress. Circumstances in which a Local 
Authority might refrain from issuing a warning notice include when: 

• The Local Authority have notified Ofsted that the inspection of the school 
should be brought forward  

• The school acknowledges the problem and is working effectively with the SIP, 
or other support commissioned by the local authority, to rectify the problem 

• The school has taken positive steps, and is monitoring these effectively, to 
rectify areas identified for improvement after an Ofsted Grade 3 (satisfactory) 
judgement. 

 

4.5 Issuing a warning notice 
Once the grounds for issuing a warning notice have been established, the Local 
Authority will set out their concerns in writing to the governing body. This written notice 
must include: 
 

a. The reasons for issuing the warning notice, including references to the 
quantitative  and qualitative evidence the authority has used in deciding to 
issue the notice 

b. The action the Governing Body needs to take in order to address the concerns 
raised 

c. The action the Local Authority is considering if the Governing Body do not 
comply satisfactorily with the warning 

d. The date when the 15 working-day compliance period will come to an end 
e. A reminder to the Governing Body that they may appeal to Ofsted within 15 

working days if they feel that the grounds for issuing the warning notice are not 
valid or that the action proposed if the school fails to comply is disproportionate 

 
The Local Authority must send the warning notice to the Governing Body of the school 
and copy the notice to the Headteacher, HMCI at Ofsted, and the appropriate 
appointing authority for church, foundation or voluntary schools. The local authority is 
also expected to send the notice to the SIP. 
 
4.6 Appealing against the warning notice 
The Governing Body of a school that has received a warning notice can appeal to 
Ofsted under section 60(7) of the Act, if it believes that the Local Authority has: 

• issued the warning notice without sufficient objective evidence, or: 

• proposed action that is disproportionate to the scale of the issues facing the 
school. 

 
The appeal must be made in writing within 15 working days of receipt of the warning 
notice. It should be sent to the Regional Divisional Manager at Ofsted, and copied to 
the LA. 
 
The written appeal may contain, as appropriate: 

• why the governors disagree with the grounds for the warning notice; or 

Page 17



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 11 

• why the governors consider the action proposed by the authority is 
disproportionate to the scale of the issues facing the school; or 

• a combination of both the above 
 

4.7 Role of Ofsted 
Ofsted will send an e-mail to the school, copied to the Local Authority, acknowledging 
receipt of the appeal. 
 
Ofsted may request additional documentary evidence; if such evidence is requested, it 
should be supplied within 5 working days. 
 
Ofsted will scrutinise the evidence provided, and may also examine other relevant 
documents (e.g. the school's Ofsted report, RAISE online data, and the Local 
Authority's Joint Area Review report).  
 
Ofsted may make its judgement based on written evidence alone, if the documentation 
is sufficiently comprehensive. In some circumstances, for example if there is 
insufficient written evidence to reach a decision, Ofsted may inspect the school. 
 
Ofsted will decide either to uphold or reject the appeal, and will communicate this 
decision in writing to the school and the LA. 
 
If the appeal is upheld, the warning notice will be rescinded. 
 
If the appeal is rejected, the warning notice will be reissued to the school. The school 
must take appropriate action to respond within 15 working days of receiving the 
reissued warning notice. 
 
Ultimately, irrespective of Ofsted's ratification of a warning notice, a school may 
appeal to the DfES under section 496 of the Education Act 1996, which allows the 
Secretary of State to consider whether a Local Authority has acted unreasonably in 
exercising its functions. 
 
4.8 Expectation of the school responding to the warning notice 
If the school does not appeal to Ofsted, or the appeal has been rejected, the school 
has 15 working days to comply with the warning notice to the local authority's 
satisfaction. 
 
Such compliance may not involve full rectification of the problem, since it will not 
always be practical to do so, but it will involve positive steps towards the solution. For 
example, if the warning notice has been issued on the grounds of the relative 
underperformance of a particular group of pupils, the minimum expectation would be 
that the school amends its improvement plan to identify what support this group of 
pupils requires, how this additional support will be delivered, and how the effect of this 
additional support will be measured. 
 
The development of the school's improvement plan as a result of the warning notice 
should be discussed with the local authority or the SIP to ensure plans are sufficient. If 
the authority is content with the action proposed or taken, the warning notice should 
be rescinded and the intervention powers may not be used. 

Page 18



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 12 

4.9 Use of intervention powers 
A Local Authority's intervention powers are available if the school has not complied 
satisfactorily with the warning notice within the 15 day period following its issue (or re-
issue following an appeal). 
 
Where a Local Authority has clearly stated in the warning notice which intervention 
powers it intends to use should the school fail to comply, and it still intends to exercise 
these powers, the Local Authority may intervene after a reasonable notice period. If 
urgent intervention is required, this period could be as little as one working day after 
the end of the compliance period. 
 
In all cases, the Local Authority is required to use its intervention powers within 2 
months of the end of the 15-day compliance period. If it fails to intervene within this 
time, a new valid warning notice must be issued. If the school is in special measures 
or requires significant improvement, the power is available as long as the school 
remains in one of those categories. 
 
4.10 Power of local authority to require governing body to enter into 
arrangements. 
Local Authorities are given a new power of intervention allowing them to direct the 
governing body of a maintained school to take certain steps if the school is eligible for 
intervention. 
 

• Section 63(1) of the Act sets out what sort of arrangements a governing body 
might be instructed to enter into: 

• contracting with another party for the provision of advisory services to the 
governing body; 

• collaborating with the governing body of another school; 

• collaborating with a further education college or creating or joining a federation. 
 
Before using this power, the Local Authority must consult the governing body of the 
school. In the case of a church school (foundation or voluntary), it must consult the 
appropriate diocesan authority. 
 
Halton LA will use their powers to appoint additional governors at maintained schools 
subject to special measures, in need of significant improvement, or at which the 
governing body have not complied with a formal warning. The Local Authority is no 
longer required to have received a notice of receipt of the inspection report from the 
Secretary of State, or for a 10 day period to have elapsed once that notice has been 
received, before the local authority can appoint additional governors. 
 
Halton LA may appoint a specially constituted governing body in place of the existing 
governors at a school that is eligible for intervention. This body remains as ‘Interim 
Executive Board’. The power may only be exercised with the consent of the Secretary 
of State and the governing body must be given written notice of the exercise of the 
power. The Local Authority is no longer required to receive a notice of receipt of the 
inspection report from the Secretary of State, or to wait 10 days, before appointing 
interim executive board members. 
 
 

Page 19



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 13 

 
4.11 Power of local authority to suspend right to delegated budget 
Local Authorities’ have powers to suspend a school’s right to a delegated budget if a 
school is eligible for intervention. This power will be used by Halton LA if appropriate. 
 
4.12 Guidance relating to schools requiring special measures and significant 
improvement (schools in Ofsted categories) 
There is a set of ‘overarching principles’ which Halton adheres to: 
 

• minimising the time a school spends in special measures or requiring significant 
improvement; 

• building the capacity of the school’s leadership and management; 

• taking action to secure improvements immediately after a school is judged to be 
failing; 

• using opportunities for collaboration or federation with other schools, trusts, 
colleges or other organisations; 

• giving consideration to a school opting to become a trust school or an academy; 

• involving parents and carers in the preparation of a statement of action, which 
should consider all the options available for securing improved pupil outcomes, 
and sets out clearly what action is to be taken, by whom and by when; 

• keeping action under review so that good progress is made within the first 12 
months. 

 
For schools in special measures, schools will normally receive 2 monitoring visits from 
Ofsted within a year to check on progress. When insufficient progress has been made, 
the Secretary of State will give notice to the Local Authority that the case has become 
urgent. The authority will be required to review action taken so far and produce a new 
statement of action. 
 
4.13 Status of Strategy 
This Strategy operates as a detailed but responsive framework within which the 
Council’s support and intervention role can be exercised. It is not intended to restrict 
the operation of the Council’s powers under the Education and Inspections Act 2006. 
In the event of any conflict between the Act and the Strategy the Act shall prevail. 
Decisions will always be taken in the light of particular circumstances.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



Strategy for Intervention and Support  Draft Dec 07 

Appendix A   

 14 

 

5. Categories of Support and Intervention 
 
Category Defined by Features 
Core Support 
The overwhelming 
majority of schools 

Self-sustainable 
improvement to raise and 
maintain standards 

LA support differentiated 
according to need 
Dissemination of good practice 
 

Vulnerable schools 
These schools have 
the capacity to 
improve with a greater 
level of support 

Schools facing significant 
challenge, which without 
further support, will become 
a concern 

Evidence of performance 
shows weaknesses which 
need external support to 
address 
 
Joint LA / School review to 
agree support and a raising 
achievement plan 
 
At least satisfactory progress 
within 6-12 months 
 

Schools Causing 
Concern 
1. Notice to improve – 
these schools have 
serious weaknesses 
but the capacity to 
improve.  
 
2. Schools which are 
failing their pupils and 
have an Ofsted 
inspection designation 
of Special Measures 
or the equivalent LA 
categorisation. These 
schools lack the 
capacity to improve 

Ofsted Special Measures 
and Notice to Improve or 
clear LA evidence that 
indicates weaknesses in 
standards, leadership, 
learning, teaching and 
inclusion 

Clear evidence of significant 
weakness equivalent to Ofsted 
designation of SCC 
 
Monitoring and review – with 
reports to governors each term 
 
Support from a cross service 
team working to an agreed 
RAP each term 
 
Measures or equivalent LA 
designation – significant 
improvement in 12 months and 
removal within 2 years 
 
Notice – improvement to justify 
removal within 12 – 14 months 
and at least satisfactory 
progress at review 
 

Formal Intervention 
If none of the previous 
support is effective  

Schools where the situation 
is at least comparable in 
seriousness to a finding of 
Special Measures. Serious 
breakdown of leadership, 
discipline and / or order 
 

Formal warning followed by for 
example: 
Appointment of additional 
governors, suspension of 
delegated budget, closure, 
federation, amalgamation 

 

Page 21



REPORT TO:  Executive Board  
 
DATE: 24 January 2008 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Corporate & Policy 
 
SUBJECT: CPA Corporate Assessment and Joint Area 

Review of Children and Young People 
 
WARDS: Borough-Wide 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
This report summarises the background to the forthcoming Corporate 
Assessment and Joint Area Review inspections, the process and 
timetable, and arrangements for the preparation of a self assessment 
for the Corporate Assessment. 

2. RECOMMENDATION: That 

 
(1) The arrangements for the CPA Corporate Assessment and the 

Joint Area Review of Children’s Services be noted. 
 

(2) Authority be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Leader to approve the Self Assessment for submission 
to the Audit Commission. 

3. BACKGROUND TO THE CORPORATE ASSESSMENT 
 

The Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) is an annual 
rating of all top tier authorities (unitary, metropolitan and county 
councils) published in February.  The rating is based on a combination 
of: 
 
� Annual service assessments (Children, Adult Social Services, 

Environment, Housing, Culture and Benefits) 
 
� The annual use of resources assessment; and 

 
� A corporate assessment of the Council conducted every three 

years 
 

Each of these elements is given a score of 1-4 (4 is best) and they are 
combined to produce a star rating (in February 2007 Halton was rated 
as 4 stars). 
 
As well as a star rating, there is an annual “direction of travel” 
assessment ranging from “not improving” to “improving strongly”.  In 

Agenda Item 4aPage 22



February 2007, Halton Borough Council was judged to be “four star, 
improving well”.  
 
As stated above, part of the overall CPA rating is determined by a 
Corporate Assessment which takes the form of a two week inspection. 
Halton was inspected in 2002 (scoring 3 out of 4) and in 2005 (when 
the score increased to 4 out of 4).  The Audit Commission will conduct 
a further corporate assessment in April.  The Corporate Assessment 
has been made tougher since 2005 (“the Harder Test”).  The outcome 
can have a major impact on Halton’s 2008 CPA rating and will 
influence the risk assessment element of the Comprehensive Area 
Assessment (CAA from 2009). 
 
The Corporate Assessment looks at: 
 
� what is the Council, together with its partners trying to achieve? 

 
� what is the capacity of the Council, including its work with 

partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve? 
 
� what has been achieved? 

 
The inspection covers all areas of the Council’s activity (although the 
main spotlight on Children’s Services comes through the Joint Area 
Review rather than the Corporate Assessment).  It starts from a self 
assessment submitted by the Council.  Using this, together with a 
survey of partners (the stakeholder survey) and key documents the 
inspection team will identify areas for investigation.  The timetable for 
this is: 
 
4 February 2008 Council submits the self assessment 

 
27-29 February  2008 Inspection team in Halton for document 

review. Tour on 27 February 2008, feedback 
on areas for investigation on 28 February 
2008. 
 

31 March - 11 April 2008 Inspection takes place through interviews, 
focus groups and observation 
 

22 July Report published 
 

The inspection team will comprise of six individuals - the Lead 
Inspector, two other Audit Commission Inspectors (one of whom is a 
link to the Joint Area Review), a peer officer, a peer member and a 
support officer. 
 
During their visit, the team are likely to want to interview a selection of 
Executive Board Members, PPB Chairs and other Members. 
 

Page 23



4. BACKGROUND TO THE JOINT AREA REVIEW (JAR) 

 
JAR is also on inspection, but it will look at how well services for 
children in Halton are being provided, not just by the Council, but by 
those who work with us such as Connexions, the Primary Care Trust, 
Police, Probation and voluntary organisations.  Inspectors will look in 
detail at a number of randomly selected cases of our most vulnerable 
children to see how closely and effectively the partners work together 
to provide the right help and support.  As well as examining files, the 
inspectors will interview children, parents, carers, other frontline 
workers and Councillors. At the end of the inspection, the following 
specific areas will be rated from one (inadequate) to four (outstanding). 
 

• Children in need of safeguarding 

• Children in care 

• Children who have a learning difficulty and/or disability 

• Service management 

• Capacity to improve   
 

The JAR inspection will take place at the same time as the CPA 
Corporate Assessment, and the link inspector will be a member of both 
teams.  The self assessment for JAR is the review of the Children and 
Young Peoples Plan which was submitted as part of our recent Annual 
Performance Assessment, but otherwise the timetable will be the 
same. 
 
27-29 February  2008 JAR inspection team in Halton for document 

review.  
 

31 March 2008 - 11 April 
2008 

Inspection takes place through interviews, 
focus groups and observation 
 

 

5. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CPA CORPORATE ASSESSMENT AND 
JOINT ARE REVIEW 

 
Each of the two inspections will provide evidence to the other.  The 
JAR will provide the evidence on what we have achieved for Children & 
Young People in Halton as part of the Corporate Assessment.  The 
Corporate Assessment will provide information to the JAR on the 
capacity of the Council and its ability to support improvement in 
Children’s Services. 
 

6. CORPORATE ASSESSMENT SELF ASSESSMENT 
 

As stated in 3 above, the Council is required to submit a self 
assessment to the Inspection Team by 4 February 2008. This must 
explain to the Inspection Team in no more than 25 pages what Halton 

Page 24



is like, our vision, ambition and priorities, and provide evidence of 
capacity and achievement.  Work has been in hand for some time 
gathering evidence, with a workshop for senior managers and 
interviews of a cross section of members, staff and partners by 
experienced inspectors to find out how we appear to outsiders. 
 
The information gathered in this way has helped us to draft a self 
assessment.  It is important that it is a realistic view of Halton Borough 
Council which is recognisable to Members, Officers, Partners and 
residents so that it will be corroborated during the interview and focus 
group stage of the inspection. 
 
A draft will be circulated to Executive Board Members for comment.  
Given the deadline for submission, it is recommended that authority to 
finalise the submission be delegated to the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Leader. 

7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
The inspections will not themselves have any implications for the 
setting or implementation of policy.  However, they will provide an 
independent assessment of the soundness of our policy framework and 
our success in achieving our ambitions for Halton. 
 
The findings of the inspection will include recommendations for further 
improvement. 

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
The cost of the CPA inspection is included within our external audit 
fees. 

9. IMPLICATIONS FOR 

 
� Healthy Halton 
� Urban Renewal 
� Children & Young People in Halton 
� Safer Halton 
� Employment Learning and Skills  
 
See Section 7 above 

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
“CPA - The Harder Test” - R Mackenzie, 2nd Floor, Municipal Building, 
Widnes 

Page 25



REPORT TO: Executive Board 
 
DATE: 24th January 2008 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: North West Development Agency (NWDA) 
 Corporate Plan 2008 
 
WARDS: All 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The NWDA is consulting regional partners on its draft Corporate Plan 

and the purpose of this report is to present a response to this 
consultation. A response is required by 1st February 2008. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 
 
 Subject to additional comments raised, Members approve the 

proposed response to the Consultation. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The NWDA is required by Government to produce a new Corporate 

Plan to cover the period 2008/09 – 2010/11. Government determines 
the format of the Corporate Plan. In summary, the Corporate Plan 
should set out how the NWDA will – 

 

• Continue to deliver the Regional Economic Strategy 
 

• Contribute to the delivery of the regional growth objective and 
Regional Economic performance Public Service Agreement 

 

• Implement new responsibilities and duties arising from the 
Comprehensive Spending review Settlement and Sub National 
Economic Development Review, (SNR). 

 
 Members will recall that the SNR set out to identify how existing sub-

national structures could be further improved. It also considered the 
most appropriate levels of governance and decision-making for 
activities directly linked to successful economic development and 
regeneration of deprived areas. 

 
 It is within this context that this year’s NWDA Corporate Plan is being 

prepared.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5aPage 26



4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are a number of policy implications that Members will need to 

take into account. 
 
 The NWDA’s single pot is being reduced by 5% per annum. This is a 

reduction from £399 million per annum now, to £338m by 2010/11. 
 
 In responding to the SNR, the NWDA’s Corporate Plan makes 

reference to Government’s intention that decisions and delivery of 
economic development activity should take place at the most 
appropriate level.  Regional Development Agencies, nationally, should 
be moving to a programme rather than a project based approach and 
decision-making on funding should be delegated to Local Authorities or 
sub-regions. 

 
 The SNR also proposes the integration of regional strategies, for 

example, the Regional Economic Strategy, Regional Spatial Strategy 
and Regional Housing Strategy and the NWDA’s Corporate Plan 
begins to give consideration to how this work might be developed. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There is now a greater focus on how the NWDA will contribute to 

achieving the minimum regional growth target. This target is between 
19% and 2.3% per annum increase in GVA per head of population, the 
lower end being consistent with the Agency’s Regional Economic 
Performance PSA target. In addition, targets are also presented at a 
sub-regional level. 

 
 The Corporate Plan has been presented to the North West Regional 

Assembly’s Review and Scrutiny Group (RSG) where Members are 
considering whether the Plan clearly reflects a clear change of direction 
for the NWDA, i.e. an ongoing management of the RES, whilst 
delegating project decisions. 

 
 The RSG also considered the following questions – 
 

• How should we, as a region, consider the minimum GVA/head 
target of 1.9% - does it represent too low an expectation given 
that the region, and NWDA, had agreed a higher target in the 
RES (2006-2009)? Can the region in any way reject this low 
aspiration? 

 

• The Corporate Plan includes a forecast of sub-regional 
contribution to GVA growth: how important is it to identify the 
sub-regional contribution to GVA growth and how reliable are 
the figures provided? 

 

Page 27



• Can you provide more evidence for your changing spending 
priorities, including who so far has supported the shifts 
proposed? Was an Equality Impact Assessment undertaken on 
the draft Corporate Plan and, if so, is it a publicly available 
document? 

 

• There are now 11 corporate objectives whist the RES has 25 
“factors” and 45 transformational actions. Which, if any, of the 
latter have been downgraded in importance? Have any 
particular RES actions been upgraded? 

 

• The 11 Corporate Objectives each have financial allocation for 
the period 2008 – 2011: to what extent does this represent a 
change from previous spending and can further tables be given 
so comparisons with current allocations by RES factor can be 
made? 

 

• Is the NWDA right to maintain its support for the regional 
programme of Business Link given SNR and the wishes of sub-
regions? What percentage of other regional programmes will be 
delegated, do you envisage, by 2011? 

 

• Can you provide any advance thinking on how NWDA intends to 
work in close partnership with local authorities, SRPs and the 
successor body to the NWRA when drafting the single Regional 
Strategy? 

 
 It is suggested that these questions should be reflected in Halton’s 

response. However, there are also other points, which have been 
raised by respective Council directorates and departments, set out 
below.  

 
 General comments 
 
 General comments relate to the format and style. The document could 

be user-friendly and could be broken down further into sub-sections, for 
example, ‘Key Messages’ ‘Key Achievements’ . Whilst the document 
covers the key points the reader needs to plough through surplus 
narrative to get to the key headlines.  

 
 The order of the document could be presented in a more sequential 

way, because at times sections appear to be disparate and do not 
hang together well. 

 
 It is also suggested that the Executive Summary could be more hard-

hitting, as there is a lot of narrative before the purpose of the Plan is 
presented. In fact, the purpose of the Corporate Plan often appears to 
be ‘lost’ and there appears to be a slight variation in its function. For 
example, on the one hand, the Executive Summary proposes that the 
Plan is the NWDA’s response to changes announced by Government 

Page 28



in the CSR and SNR, but later in the document the purpose of the plan 
suggests (appropriately), that its focus is on: 

 

• How the agency will use its funds and provide support over the 
next 3 years? 

 

• How the RES will be delivered? 
 

• How outputs/targets will be met?                  
 
 Similar issues relate to the vision and mission again “lost” in the main 

body of the text and could be articulated more simply by “what is it we 
want to achieve and by when?” 

 
 Other Comments 
 
 The reference to External Factors (driving changes) particularly the 

legislative and political context is useful, but perhaps this section could 
be set out more clearly using a SWOT analysis and or PESTLE.  

 
 Following on from this, what sets us apart from other regions (our 

distinctive characteristics) is not clear from the document. 
 
 It is also difficult to work out what is presented as new activity, what 

has already been allocated to ‘new’ initiatives. How much headroom 
exists? 

 
 The document also refers to changes that have been announced but 

gives little detail on how these changes will be implemented, for 
example, proposed governance and reporting structures. 

 
 The document presents an ambitious Change Programme but this 

change in culture is inconsistent across the NWDA, and there are still 
examples of strategy being developed top down – the development of 
the governance and reporting arrangements for the New European 
Programme is an example of this. 

 
 The document also makes reference to the role of the NWDA in 

contributing to the scrutiny role. It is suggested that in light of the SNR 
the wording needs to be changed to demonstrate that the NWDA has a 
supporting role and not a driving/leading role in this respect. 

 
 Colleagues have also made comments concerning target setting and 

performance management specifically Page 10 – 3rd paragraph – can 
targets be aspirational? Should not targets and objectives be set within 
a context of SMART? 

 
 There appears to be a considerable lack of measurable outcome 

indicators, which could be monitored against a set timescale. Even 

Page 29



where there is an attempt to set a meaningful target, some of the actual 
target figures are missing.  

 
 Other specific comments relate to the allocation of resources, i.e.  
 

• Not enough NWDA resource being made available for enterprise 
priority areas i.e. Halton.  

 

• No real explanation of the need for the NWDA to support cultural 
change programmes in these areas. 

 

• No mention of any Halton projects as a priority for employment 
sites. What is the rationale for those that have been identified? A 
specific example is Ditton/3MG, which is a regionally important 
site but is not mentioned. Daresbury is mentioned but not within 
the context of “Higher Level Skills” and appropriate reference 
should be made to discussions regarding the Science Training 
Facility. 

 

• Too little resource identified to tackle worklessness in the next 
year. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
 In recent years, the Council has been proactive in ensuring that there is 

a close alignment of regional and sub-regional priorities with local 
priorities and vice-versa. We have worked with the NWDA to ensure 
that Halton’s priorities are included within regional strategy documents. 

 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 
 No direct implications. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
 The Council has received resources from the NWDA to support our 

Employment Learning and Skills priority.  The proposed reduction in 
resources outlined in section 4 of the report is likely to impact on future 
funding being made available to the Borough. 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
 No direct implications. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 
 No direct implications. 
 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 

Page 30



 
 The Council has received resources from the NWDA to support our 

Urban Renewal priority. The proposed reduction in resources outlined 
in section 4 of the report is likely to impact on future funding being 
made available to the Borough. 

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
 None. 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
 The NWDA’s Corporate Plan identifies equality and diversity as a 

cross-cutting theme; i.e. any initiative or project supported by the 
NWDA must adhere to the principle of equality of access for all. 
Emphasis is placed on wider social inclusion issues and on this basis, 
the NWDA’s Corporate Plan refers to improving low skills and 
qualifications levels in the region, as well as tackling low economic 
activity/high worklessness rates.    

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 

Page 31



 

 1 

Northwest Regional Development Agency Corporate Plan 2008-2011 
 
 

1. Executive Summary 

 

 2 

2. Review of Current Economic Position 

 

 7 

3. Policy Context 

 

 9 

4. Review of Progress against Corporate Plan 2005-2008 

 

14 

5. Corporate Objectives, Key Priorities and Themes 

 

16 

6. Working together to Deliver the RES 

 

40 

7. Evaluation and Performance Management 

 

45 

8. Organisational Change 

 

47 

9. Resource Plan and Estates Policy 

 

48 

Annexes and Tables 51 

Page 32



 

 2 

1.  Executive Summary 
 
The Northwest Regional Development Agency exists to lead the sustainable 
economic growth1 of England’s Northwest.  The region has agreed a strategic vision, 
clear priorities and targets through the Regional Economic Strategy (RES). The RES 
also sets out the actions which the region has agreed are vital to delivering its vision 
at regional, sub-regional and local level.  It therefore provides the overarching context 
for all the Agency’s activities. 
 
The Agency contributes to these RES actions directly through its own investment 
programme with partners and by using its strategic influence and responsibilities to 
lead and align the work of private and public sector partners with specific 
responsibility for delivering specific actions. 
 
The Agency’s role is to provide strategic leadership to ensure that the region as a 
whole prioritises actions and achieves sustainable economic development through 
implementation of the RES. 
 
The NWDA has made excellent progress over the period 2005/8 against its last 
Corporate Plan.  This was refreshed in the light of the updated RES in 2006. In 
particular real progress has been made on a range of those actions which the region 
agreed would have the most transformational impact. This includes the mediacity:uk 
development, the creation of Business Link Northwest, the opening of the University 
of Cumbria and the launch of the Climate Change Action Plan.  This Corporate Plan 
sets out the next stage of NWDA’s development, enhancing its strategic and 
commissioning role and delegating delivery and project decision making to sub-
regional and local organisations.   
 
This Plan is NWDA’s response to the changes announced by Government in the 
Comprehensive Spending Review and Sub National Review (SNR); in which 
Government set out proposals to: 
 

• Ensure that all localities and regions have the opportunities for sustainable 
economic growth. 

• Encourage greater joint working across Local Authority boundaries in sub and city 
regions. 

• Integrate the range of regional strategies (economic (RES), spatial including 
transport (RSS) and housing (RHS) into a Single Regional Strategy. Regional 
Development Agencies will have executive responsibility to work with partners 
and developing these strategies on behalf of each region.  There will be an  
enhanced role for Local Authorities, who will be fully involved in strategy 
development, sign them off and scrutinise their implementation. 

• Ensure decisions are taken and delivery managed at the most appropriate level, 
with RDAs moving more to a programme rather than project approach and 
delegating more responsibility for project funding decisions to local authorities or 
sub regions. 
 

                                                 
1
 Sustainable growth’ here and throughout this document refers to economic growth which can be 

sustained and is within environmental limits, but also enhances the environment and social welfare, 
and avoids greater extremes in future economic cycles. 

Page 33



 

 3 

Government is setting a minimum growth objective (GVA/head) for each region, to 
support delivery of the Regional Economic Performance Public Sector Agreement 
(REP PSA) target. This objective will be embedded within the Single Regional 
Strategy and built into RDA Corporate Plans.  Government recognises that overall 
growth rates are significantly influenced by international and national 
factors/decisions as well as investment decisions taken within the region. 
Government has also replaced the current RDA Tasking Framework and will instead 
monitor RDAs against the delivery of their Corporate Plans.  Government will monitor 
the progress of regional economies against the GVA/head objective and five 
outcome focused indicators – GVA/hour worked; Employment rates; Basic, 
Intermediate and Higher Level Skills rates; R&D as a percentage of GDP; and 
Business Start up rates. RDA’s Corporate Plans must show how they contribute to 
this growth objective as well as to the principles of Sustainable Development and 
Economic Opportunity for All. 
 
This Corporate Plan covers the period 2008/09 to 2010/11 and therefore sets out 
how the Agency will: 

 

• Continue to deliver the Regional Economic Strategy (RES) 

• Contribute to delivery of the regional growth objective and Regional Economic 
Performance Public Service Agreement (REP PSA2)  

• Implement new responsibilities and duties arising from the Comprehensive 
Spending Review settlement and Review of Sub-National Economic Development 

 
RES 2006 already sets a GVA growth target for the region, and this Corporate Plan 
therefore sets out objectives consistent with achieving a GVA/head growth rate of 1.9 
– 2.3% per annum. The lower end of this range is the likely Government minimum 
objective and the higher end is consistent with the aspiration set out in the RES. 
 
The Northwest economy has performed well over the last few years, but all the 
evidence suggests that maintaining growth in the next few years is going to be 
tougher for the region. The longer-term impact of the credit crisis nationally and its 
impacts regionally; high oil and foodstuffs prices, and their disproportionate effect on 
the Northwest due to the size and nature of our manufacturing sector are all factors.  
Tighter controls on government spending nationally could also have a greater impact 
on the Northwest due to the importance of public sector employment. The 
demographics of an ageing population and reduction of the working age population 
will also be important. 
 
NWDA has agreed to high efficiency savings as part of its CSR settlement and its 
overall budget will be reduced by around 5% per annum over the coming years.   
This means that the resources available to invest in supporting projects and 
programmes will reduce from their current annual level of £399m to £338m by 
2010/11. Given the growth objective set out above, the challenging economic 
conditions and the reduced resources available, this plan has therefore been 
developed to support tough choices over the next three years. A summary of the 
expected total income and expenditure over the life of this plan is over the page. 
 

                                                 
2
 This PSA is “To make sustainable improvements in the economic performance of all English regions, 

and over the long-term reduce the persistent gap in the growth rate between the regions”.  

Page 34



 

 4 

 
Income and Expenditure Summary 

 
Financial Year 2008/09 £m 2009/10 £m 2010/11 £m 

Grant in Aid 391.6 386.5 377.4 
EU Programme 212.2 86.5 72.3 
Other 56.9 28.9 19.4 

Total Income 660.7 501.8 469.1 
    

Expenditure    
EU Programme 211.0 85.3 71.1 
NWDA Programme  390.6 358.2 338.5 
Overheads 53.8 52.8 52.8 

Irrecoverable VAT 5.3 5.5 6.7 
Total Expenditure 660.7 501.8 469.1 

 
The Agency’s Board has therefore agreed 11 corporate objectives based on the RES 
and designed to improve competitiveness and productivity across the region’s 
Business, People and Places.  The NWDA is now consulting on these across 
regional partners.  They reflect the totality of NWDA’s responsibilities, and focus on 
delivery of the specific actions in the Regional Economic Strategy on which NWDA 
leads delivery.  These are summarised below: 
 
Competitive Business 
1 Support the development of internationally competitive sectors 
2 Improve the formation, survival and growth rates of enterprises  
3 Develop higher added value activity through innovation 

4 Realise opportunities from globalisation 
Competitive People 
5 Develop leadership and management skills in the current workforce 
6 Develop intermediate and higher level skills in the current workforce 
7 Grow the size of the workforce 
Competitive Places 
8 Support the development of major employment sites and premises 
9 Improve the physical conditions for private sector investment 
10 Ensure the implementation of the Climate Change Action Plan 
11 Improve the image of the region to businesses and visitors 
 
Against each objective, this Plan sets out the specific rationale for our investment 
and the main outcomes we are seeking to achieve, along with high level details of the 
activity that will be delivered to meet these objectives. The Plan also highlights 
important sub regional variations. A summary of the main outcomes and activities we 
aim to achieve will be included in the final plan taking once the RDA Tasking 
Framework has been finalised by Government.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

 5 

In setting out how these objectives are to be delivered, this Corporate Plan is clear 
that NWDA’s role is changing, moving away from direct delivery of actions to 
strategic engagement and commissioning.  This will require an important shift in 
culture and organisational skills and capacity within NWDA. This Corporate Plan 
therefore marks the start of a fundamental shift in our relationships with many 
partners. NWDA will work with sub-regional and local partners to ensure that delivery 
resources and capacity are located within the most appropriate organisation at the 
point of delivery.   Delivery may continue to be regional where the evidence shows 
this is most effective (e.g. Business Support). 
 
Change Programme 
 
Change will be achieved through a major programme over 2008/09 covering Agency 
systems, structures and skills.  Specifically over the life of this plan we will: 
 

• Work closely with sub-regions and Local Authorities and emerging Multi Area 
Agreements to strengthen our arrangements for delegation and move towards 
contracting with relevant organisations on a programme management basis 

• Plan investments on the basis of the RES and priorities set out in Economic 
Development plans agreed by each sub-region which set out how the RES is 
delivered in those places. 

• Work closely with NWRA to develop and support any successor arrangements, 
which ensure strong co-ordinated local authority involvement in discussing and 
agreeing priorities within the new Single Regional Strategy and in scrutinising its 
delivery. 

• Develop the new Single Regional Strategy (subject to CLG’s detailed 
consultation) working in close partnership with Local Authorities and Sub 
Regions, and specifically with NWRA and GONW through the Regional Strategy 
Team. Subject to legislation RDAs may become the regional planning body during 
this period. 

• Manage the new ERDF programme through formalised partnership working and 
the PMC. 

• Strengthen collaboration with ONE North East and Yorkshire Forward through 
ensuring the Northern Way takes an evidence based approach focussing on the 
agreed pan-regional priorities of transport, innovation and private sector 
investment 

• Work in partnership with all RDAs and Government Departments to deliver our 
lead role responsibility around Skills. 

• Support the delivery of Business Support Simplification objectives in the region. 
 
In delivering this plan we will support the principles of sustainable development and 
equality and diversity and economic opportunity for all which are embedded within 
the RES. For each objective this plan sets out how these themes will be addressed.  
The Comprehensive Spending Review also gave RDAs new responsibilities in 
relation to the Technology Strategy Board, Economic Shocks and Skills Brokerage.  
This Corporate Plan outlines how NWDA intends to respond to deliver these. 
  
 
 
 

Page 36



 

 6 

The NWDA is committed to the full use of evaluation evidence to inform its decision 
making and further improve the effectiveness of future programmes.  We have 
strengthened our approach to evaluation during 2007 and will embed this within the 
organisation during this Corporate Plan period. We have developed a three year 
evaluation plan and toolkit covering all projects and programmes. By using evaluation 
to influence future decision making the Agency will further embed learning and 
ensure efficient and effective projects and programmes are developed in response to 
agreed regional priorities. 
 
This Corporate Plan sets out our strategic plans and priorities over the next three 
years. The Agency will therefore support the implementation of this Corporate Plan 
by publishing an annual Business Plan3 which will set out our plans for that year in 
more detail.   

                                                 
3
 The annual Business Plan for each of the three years of the Corporate plan will be the mechanism 

for setting out the operational details of how the Agency plans to deliver Corporate objectives 

Page 37



 

 7 

2.  Review of Current Economic Position  
 
Growth in the Northwest in 2006 was forecast to be 2.2%, close to that in 2005.  
Forecast growth is expected to be stronger at 2.3% in 2007. The table below 
illustrates the forecast growth over the Corporate Plan period, GVA growth is forecast 
to slow to 2.1% in 2008, before recovering to 2.2% in 2009 and to 2.5% in 2010.  
Current GVA per head growth forecasts, although from a different source (Experian), 
are substantially lower at 1.7 (2007), 1.9 (2008), 1.6 (2009) and 1.8 (2010). 
 

TABLE 2:  REAL GVA GROWTH  
WITHIN THE NORTHWEST (% pa) 

  2007 2008 2009 2010 

Cheshire 2.6 2.4 2.6 2.9 

Cumbria 1.7 2 2.2 2.5 

Greater 
Manchester 2.7 2.1 2.2 2.5 

Lancashire 1.9 1.9 2 2.3 

Merseyside 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.3 
Northwest 2.3 2.1 2.2 2.5 

UK 2.4 2.1 2.4 3.2 

Source(s):  Panel Forecasts, October 2007 and Cambridge Econometrics. 
 
Sectoral growth in the region has been mixed with strong growth in construction 
related sectors, government/public sector, transport and communications. Financial 
and business services have also grown strongly in 2007.  Current forecasts are 
predicting slower growth, in line with the Governments own projections.  
 

TABLE 2:  NORTHWEST SECTOR OUTPUT 

% growth pa A
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

re
 

M
in

in
g

 a
n
d

 q
u

a
rr

y
in

g
 

M
a

n
u

fa
c
tu

ri
n

g
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
, 

G
a

s
 

a
n

d
 

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
, 

h
o

te
ls

 
a

n
d

 c
a

te
ri
n
g

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

T
o

ta
l 

2007 1.9 -4.3 1 0.6 2.5 2.7 4.1 4.2 1.7 2.3 

2008 0.1 1.5 0.9 2.6 1.5 1.8 2.6 3.4 2 2.1 

2009 -0.3 -0.9 1.2 2 1.2 2.3 2.8 3 1.9 2.2 

2010 0.7 0.3 1.9 1.2 1.2 2.8 3 4 1.8 2.5 

Source(s):  Panel Forecasts, October 2007 and Cambridge Econometrics. 
 
Employment in the Northwest is forecast to grow by just under 0.5% in 2007 
compared to a fall of 1% 2006.  Falls in manufacturing and construction employment 
in 2007 are forecast to be offset by increases in financial & business services, 
government and other services and in transport and communications.  Overall 
employment growth in the region is likely to slow further in 2008 and 2009 to average 

Page 38



 

 8 

around 0.25% pa, before strengthening to 0.5% in 2010 as general recovery takes 
hold. 
 
The main risks to the economy include: 
 
- The longer-term impact of the credit crisis nationally and regionally. 

 
- High oil and foodstuffs prices, which have a disproportionate effect on the 

Northwest due to the size and nature of our manufacturing sector. 
 
- Tighter controls on government spending nationally could have a greater 

impact on the Northwest due to reliance on public sector employment. 
 
- Ageing population and reduction of the working age population could stem the 

current growth of the economy in the Northwest. 

  

Page 39



 

 9 

3.  Policy Context 
 
The Government’s review of Sub National Economic Development and Regeneration 
(SNR) reported in July.  The review sets out specific policy changes in some areas, 
whilst in others it signalled further consultation. SNR sets a policy framework for 
England as a whole, but reflects the existing direction which partners in the 
Northwest have set and enables us to build on the strong partnership and sub-
regional approach which we have put in place. 
 
NWDA will take on a number of new responsibilities during the corporate plan period 
arising from the CSR and SNR.  NWDA will:   
 

• Have responsibility for drawing up a single regional strategy covering economic, 
transport, housing, planning, social and environmental objectives bringing 
together the RES, RSS and RHS and will include a delivery plan and resources. 

 

• Be tasked around outcomes (with no output targets) with the focus on a single 
overarching growth objective for the region – GVA per head. 

 

• Reform its delivery moving more from projects to programmes and delegating 
decisions to local and sub-regional level taking account of Multi Area Agreements 
(MAA) where they have been agreed. 

 

• Work within a reformed accountability framework which will see the Regional 
Assembly cease in its current role and function by 2010 but will involve Local 
Authority scrutiny and accountability through a Regional Minister. 
 

This plan and the Corporate Objectives we have agreed incorporate NWDA’s 
response to and implementation of the findings of the SNR. 
 
Through SNR there has been a fundamental shift in the way we will undertake our 
business. We will increasingly shift away from being a delivery organisation to being 
a strategic organisation. Listening to our major partners, particularly in sub regions 
and local authorities and, we will ensure that that priorities are set which align to the 
RES and let them make detailed project decisions.  NWDA will retain important 
delivery functions around business support, where Government has endorsed 
regional delivery models to ensure maximum efficiency and economies of scale and 
support Business Support Simplification. SRP Action Plans (and Multi Area 
Agreements in future) are an important step in this direction and they have been 
influential in scoping our priorities in this Corporate Plan, which does not make 
project level commitments.  NWDA will focus on strategy and the management of 
delivery through strategic programmes to ensure outputs and outcomes are achieved 
in line with the region’s single strategy. Achieving this will take time and considerable 
change, but we are very clear about the journey that we are on. This Corporate Plan 
marks the start of that fundamental change. 
 
Overarching Growth Objective 
 
Government is proposing to set a minimum growth objective for the region.  This has 
not been finalised, but is likely to be around 1.9% GVA/head per annum real growth 

Page 40



 

 10 

over the period 2002-2012.  This is consistent with, and expresses the region’s 
contribution to, the Regional Economic Performance target.  
 
This Corporate Plan sets out the NWDA’s contribution to that objective, although it 
must be recognised that NWDA action alone will not enable it to be achieved. This 
objective will only be achieved by all partners aligning their activity with the vision and 
priorities set out in the existing RES and future Single Regional Strategy. 
 
The region has set targets in the RES, which in part are aspirational. This includes an 
ambition to achieve GVA growth above the England average for 2006-09. Translating 
this into a GVA /head target this would equate to GVA/head growth target of 2.3%. 
Government are likely to set a minimum objective of around 1.9%. Therefore the 
GVA/head growth range which this Corporate Plan is designed to support, is 1.9 - 
2.3% per annum. 
 
As outlined above, as part of SNR, Government has changed the RDAs’ Tasking 
Framework. NWDA’s performance will be judged based on the progress we make 
against the objectives set out in this plan.  The region as a whole will be monitored 
against the GVA/head objective and Government will also measure progress in the 
Northwest on the basis of 5 indicators: 
 

 Outcome Indicator Description/Measure of Indicator 
1. Productivity GVA per hour indices  
2. Employment Employment rates, showing proportion of 

working age population in work  
3. Skills Percentage of working age population with 

basic, intermediate and higher level skills 
attainments  

4. Innovation Gross Domestic Expenditure on R&D as a 
proportion of GVA Business; Gross 
Domestic Expenditure on R&D as a 
proportion of GVA  

5. Enterprise Number of VAT start-ups per 10,000 
working age population  

 
These are consistent with RES targets and indicators and all are priorities for action 
within the Northwest. 
 
GVA/head is the current nationally accepted measure of economic growth, although 
Northwest partners are concerned that it does not present a full picture of economic 
activity and well being within the region.  There are also important limitations in its 
use and calculation. There will also be a range of circumstances in which this 
GVA/head target should be reviewed and these willbe agreed with Government as 
follows: 
 

• A sudden shock to the regional economy e.g. industrial crises or natural disasters, 
which have the potential to create substantial economic dislocation and impact 
severely on business; 

• At the time of Government Spending reviews; 

Page 41



 

 11 

• When the regional economic strategy (in due course, the single Regional 
Strategy) is produced or updated; 

• When the Office for National Statistics revises historic data series. 
 
Developing a Single Regional Strategy 
 
GONW, NWDA and NWRA have worked closely with partners to ensure close 
alignment between the RES, RSS and Regional Housing Strategy, through the 
Regional Strategy Team.   Government has now asked NWDA to lead on the 
development of a single regional strategy.  The Northwest has agreed that it will 
move as quickly as possible to a Single Regional Strategy and is intending not to 
update the RES in 2009, but to move straight to a single strategy, in 2010 (subject to 
the necessary legislation). 
 
The NWDA will work closely with the NWRA and GONW to develop this Single 
Regional Strategy and work with the NWRA on successor arrangements to the 
Regional Assembly.  Local Authority engagement is particularly important to NWDA 
and the region given the housing and planning elements of the new single strategy.  
NWDA is also committed to a full role for the private sector in strategy development 
and delivery, as the major driver of economic growth and wealth, as well as the 3rd 
sector. 
 
NWDA, NWRA and Government Office Northwest have agreed the production of a 
single and common evidence base to develop the single Regional Strategy, and also 
to inform the Partial Review of the Regional Spatial Strategy due to occur in 2008.   
 
Existing research on housing, transport, spatial and land use planning will be 
integrated into this common evidence base over the next twelve months, reducing 
duplication of resources and the potential for conflicting evidence bases.   
 
We will put in place major research projects to strengthen our understanding of the 
linkages between elements of the single strategy and fill gaps in the existing 
evidence. A summary of the main areas of research underway is included in Annex 1 
but includes important research priorities agreed with regional partners on 
demographics, worklessness, environmental constraints, the link between housing 
and economic growth, and the link between skills and productivity 
 
This updated evidence base will: 
 

• Stimulate debate and discussion in the development of the next strategy.  

• Re-visit the economic factors identified in the RES looking in depth at the 
evidence available, monitoring progress against outcome indicators and using 
wider evidence nationally and regionally.  

• Identify the need for investment to meet market failures and revisit the challenging 
questions the region should be seeking to address. 

• Identify the comparative advantages and opportunities the Northwest region 
possesses as a basis for developing the strategy.   

 
 
 

Page 42



 

 12 

Setting NWDA priorities for investment 
 
The Regional Economic Strategy (RES) sets out the Regions twenty-year economic 
strategy, together with specific actions required by all regional partners over the 
period 2006-9. It sets the framework for the regional, as well as sub-regional and 
local action and therefore provides the strategic context for all the Agency’s activities.  
The NWDA has an overall leadership responsibility to guide the region in 
development and delivery of the RES and to ensure that progress against the RES is 
delivered, monitored and evaluated.   
 
Progress in implementing the RES is carefully monitored and a full report produced 
on an annual basis, together with a report on progress with Transformational Actions 
on a 6 monthly basis. The first full annual report showed good progress with most 
actions, although a need to avoid regional complacency if the rate of progress 
required for closing vital economic gaps and meeting RES targets is to be achieved. 
 
The RES sets out agreed specific actions under 5 broad areas. RES 
Transformational Actions for which NWDA has a major responsibility or input are set 
out below.  Our Strategic Objectives have been developed to ensure the delivery of 
these actions and have been informed by the latest progress monitoring data and our 
knowledge of current and future economic conditions.   
 

RES Transformational Actions: NWDA Responsibility 

Business  1.  Transform Business Link* 
8.  Develop key internationally competitive sectors 
9.  Develop Media:city 
12.  Develop higher added value activity through innovation 
15 & 16.  Exploit the science base and R&D 
23.  Improve Business Resource Efficiency and Waste support 
24.  Develop Regional Climate Change Action Plan. 

Skills 35.  Develop world class management/leadership and corporate 
social responsibility/environmental management skills. 

People and 
Jobs 

Stimulate economic activity in areas remote from growth:   
47. East Lancs; 48. Blackpool; 49. Barrow; 50. West Cumbria; 52. 
Develop employment creation in or near deprived areas, focused 
on HMR areas, Urban Regeneration Companies, and Halton and 
Knowsley; Support and sustain conditions for growth in areas with 
strong economic drivers:   54. Liverpool, Manchester and Preston;   
55. Crewe, Chester, Warrington, Lancaster and Carlisle;    56.  The 
Rural economy and the Regional Rural Delivery Framework. 

Infrastructure 72. Grow Manchester and Liverpool John Lennon Airports. 
80.  Deliver designated Strategic Regional Sites. 

Quality of 
Life 

101. Improve the region’s attack brands and signature projects.  
111.  Deliver the Regional Equality and Diversity Strategy. 
119.  Invest in quality public realm, green space and environmental 
quality focused on the cities of Liverpool, Manchester and Preston; 
Tourism attack brand and signature project locations and key arrive 
points; HMR and URC areas; Rural Service Centres.   

 

Page 43



 

 13 

As a growth-focussed strategy the RES provides a sound, well evidenced, basis for 
the region’s approach to its overarching growth objective.  The region has examined 
the factors, which are most likely to influence GVA per head, and has defined a small 
number of relevant outcome indicators for each priority area or factor in the RES 
based on its potential contribution to GVA. 
 
We will monitor these indicators and component parts of GVA as they change in 
order to understand the overall impact on the economy and, as part of the 
development of a single regional strategy, we will review these indicators and agree 
any further targets the region wants to set. 
 
Each objective in the Corporate Plan includes impact measures (based on these 
RES outcome indicators) which will be used to enable NWDA to ensure that it is 
contributing appropriately to RES delivery. Using existing data and evaluation 
evidence, NWDA is also developing a range of outputs that would be most 
appropriate to capture and monitor in order to assess whether our investments are 
contributing to the delivery of these outcomes.  In line with delegation of decision 
making to the most appropriate level, NWDA may contract with partners for the 
delivery of a range of outcomes or outputs (related to a programme or programmes 
of activity, rather than individual projects). The outputs/ outcomes we set for our 
programmes will form part of NWDA’s contracting framework with delivery partners, 
often on a geographic basis and potentially linked to an MAA.  
 
This will enable NWDA to link its investment to outputs from specific delivery vehicles 
and local and sub-regional organisations, through outcomes and ultimately to 
GVA/head (which has a 2-3 year time lag). This is particularly important where 
outcome data is not available at the sub-regional or local level.  This will enable 
NWDA to be confident that achievement of outputs by partners will contribute to 
achievement of the GVA/head target and to evaluate programmes on this basis. 
 

Page 44



 

 14 

4. Review of Progress against Corporate Plan 2005 –2008 
 
In our 2005/06 to 2007/08 Corporate Plan, we set out our Corporate Priorities and 
how these would support the continued delivery of the Regional Economic Strategy.  
That Corporate Plan was refreshed once the 2006 RES was produced, which all 
partners agreed was the most focused and prioritised RES to date. In particular we 
have focussed on those transformational actions which the region agreed would have 
maximum impact on sustainable economic growth.  A more comprehensive overview 
of progress and achievements is detailed within the Agency’s Annual Reports and 
Accounts covering the Corporate Plan period. These reports are freely available and 
are not repeated here.  
 
Below is a selection of key achievements and examples of progress on delivery of 
the last Corporate Plan. The Agency has performed well, building on the 
improvements to our systems and approach we have been implementing since 2003. 
We are currently projecting to meet our output targets agreed with central 
Government in the 2005 to 2008 Corporate Plan as set out in table below.  
 
In addition, the Agency was one of the first RDAs to undergo the IPA process and 
was assessed as performing strongly, the highest grade possible.   
 
Business 
Development   

mediacity:uk - project at Salford Quays, including the BBC’s 
decision to move 1,500 jobs to the site; Successful launch of 
Business Link Northwest to support the national business 
simplification agenda for Business Link with minimum interruption 
to businesses;  Opening of the National Bio-manufacturing 
Centre at Speke, flagship Daresbury Science and Innovation 
Campus and the launch of the Cockcroft Institute. The Agency’s 
investment in the Liverpool School of Tropical Medicine’s new 
Centre for Tropical and Infectious Diseases (which received its 
‘topping out’ ceremony from Lord Sainsbury) levered in a further 
£25 Million grant from the “Gates’ Foundation” and has been 
awarded status of Biomedical Centre in Infectious Disease by the 
Department of Health; Launch of Responsibility Northwest In 
March 2006 - A £3m programme of awareness raising, 
benchmarking and mentoring for Northwest Businesses on 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). 

Skills & 
Employment 
(People and 
Jobs) 

The Agency has been actively supporting the new University of 
Cumbria the Nuclear Academy and a new University Centre for 
Burnley; Project Unity has seen the creation of a major University 
to rival the best in the country; Worklessness projects delivered as 
part of the Northern Way programme have supported 2,159 
individuals resulting in taking 212 of them being taken off long term 
incapacity benefits and back into work and 133 into training; the 
leadership programme has engaged with over 1,000 through the 
Northern Leadership Academy programme run by Lancaster 
University; supported three City Employment Strategies now up 
and running in Liverpool, Manchester and Blackburn.      

Infrastructure Completion of One Central Park in the New East Manchester URC 
area; Rochdale Kingsway Phase1; Liverpool cruise liner facility; 
Liverpool Science Park;  

Page 45



 

 15 

Quality of 
Life/Image 

Aligning the ERDF, ESF and Rural Development Programme for 
England (RDPE) programmes in the region with the RES; 
Implementing the Natural Economy Northwest programme to 
develop the economic benefit of the region’s natural environment. 
Through Agency stewardship, the region was the first to launch its 
Climate Change Action Plan, designed to reduce our carbon 
emissions. The Action Plan will deliver real progress towards a low 
carbon economy for the region. Success in attracting new major 
events to the region, such as Liverpool, Capital of Culture, FINA 
World Swimming Championships, The Turner Prize and 
improvements in the image of the region as a place to live, work 
and invest. 

 
Table 2: Total Outputs aggregated 2005/06 to 2007/08 

 

Output Indicator* 

3 Year 
Achieved 
Aggregated 
Total* 

3 Year Target 
Aggregated Min 
Total 

1. Jobs Created and Safeguarded 60,846 37,600 

2. Number of people assisted to get a job 15,542 3,675 

3. Businesses Created 8,494 5,160 

4. Businesses Assisted 71,797 41,920 

4a) New Collaborations with the Knowledge 
Base 

4,546 1,710 

5. Investment Levered (£m) 1,087 910 

5?. % of Private Investment Levered 60% 38% 

5f?. Brownfield Remediated (Ha) 933 793 

6. Skills Development? 85,883 33,600 

6a) Number of adults achieving at least NVQ 2 2,456 2,175 

6b) Number of adults gaining basic skills 6,027 2,215 

* 2007/08 achieved total is based on forecast outturn figures. 
 

Page 46



 

 16 

5. Corporate Objectives, Key Priorities and Themes 
 
Government is tasking the Agency with identifying our contribution to the single 
overarching growth objective.  This will be subject to further consideration by 
Government, but is likely to be between 1.9% and 2.3% per annum over the period 
2008-2012. This section sets out corporate objectives designed to support the 
achievement of a regional growth objective of this nature based on the priorities set 
out in the RES.   
 
We have set out the detail behind our objectives, including links to the RES and 
articulated the rationale for investment, the outcomes we are seeking to achieve, the 
broad areas of activity we believe it is right to pursue to achieve those outcomes and 
the amount of investment we intend to make. This is summarised in the table below.  
These objectives take an integrated approach to social inclusion, equality and 
diversity, under represented groups and the needs of rural areas in the region 
through a mainstreamed approach to their delivery. 
 
With partners we have undertaken a major study to identify the market failures 
associated with each RES action. This will guide our investment priorities, along with 
research about the regional economy, current performance information, and strong 
monitoring and impact evaluation.  
 
Sub Regional Priorities 
 
The Northwest has developed economic development plans for each sub region, 
produced by a business led Sub Regional Partnership working closely with partners. 
These plans set out how the RES will be delivered in each sub region and identify 
further sub regional priorities. 
 
As outlined earlier, increasingly the role of NWDA is one of strategy and delivery 
management, ensuring that priorities are agreed at a local level which are consistent 
with the RES.  Within these agreed priorities, we will let others get on with the detail 
of project decisions and management, via delegation. Sub Regional Action Plans 
have therefore been very influential in scoping this Corporate Plan and setting our 
investment priorities and NWDA’s own policies. In line with NWDA’s changed role, 
this Corporate Plan does not make individual project decisions. Each objective also 
includes likely spatial implications or investments. 
 
The detail of programme and project investment levels will alter as individual 
investments are developed and approved, often within sub regions.  This will be 
based on specific outcomes the region is trying to achieve in each place to support 
the RES vision and overall regional growth objective. This will be supported by 
developments such as Multi Area agreements. 
 
NWDA’s 3 year investment plan (which will underpin implementation of this plan) will 
be finalised following this consultation process.  The final Corporate Plan will 
therefore include further detail of hoow NWDA’s investment will implact in each sub-
region. 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

 17 

Summary of NWDA Objectives 
 
The table below summarises NWDA objectives and proposed investment levels over the 
Corporate Plan period. The following sections then give the detail behind each objective. 

 
Objective Main RES Actions Proposed 

Investment £m 
(2008-11) 

COMPETITIVE BUSINESS 
 

1. Growth Sectors: Support the development of 
key internationally competitive sectors, 
including appropriate exploitation of the 
science base  

8-11, 15, 16, 101, 103-105 165.7 

2. Enterprise Support: Improve the formation, 
survival and growth rates of enterprises, 
including via availability of business finance  

 

1-6, 53  174.6 

3. Innovation: Develop higher added value 
activity through innovation and knowledge 
transfer  

12-14, 20-22 87.7 

4. Internationalisation: Realise opportunities 
from globalisation, including international trade, 
inward investment and supply chain 
opportunities 

17-19 18.3 

COMPETITIVE PEOPLE 
 

5. Leadership and Management: Develop 
leadership and management skills (including 
coaching and mentoring) in the current 
workforce 

35 27.7 

6. Higher Level Skills Development: Develop 
intermediate and higher level skills in the 
current workforce, including appropriate sector 
skills 

27, 31 65.8 

7. Size of the Workforce: Grow the size of the 
workforce through support for the work of the 
City Employment Strategies and tackling 
barriers to work 

41-46, 62, 108, 109, 111 27.8 

COMPETITIVE PLACES 
 

8. Employment Sites and Premises: Support 
the development of key employment sites and 
premises in the region 

80-83 88.8 

9. Conditions for Private Sector Investment: 
Improve the physical conditions for increased 
private sector investment in the key places in 
the region, including key infrastructure and 
public realm 

47-52, 54-56, 84, 116, 119 331.6 

10. Climate Change and Sustainable 
Consumption/Production: Ensure the 
implementation of the regional Climate Change 
Action Plan (including energy security) and the 
development of resource efficiency and 
sustainable procurement in companies 

23-25, 91 23.8 

11. . Marketing the Region: Improve the image of 
the region to businesses and visitors by 
countering outdated negative perceptions   

95, 98, 99 27.5 

Page 48



 

 18 

DETAILED CORPORATE OBJECTIVES, RATIONALE, OUTCOMES & ACTIVITIES 
 
 

1.  GROWTH SECTORS     Investment: £165.7 million 
 
Objective: Generate net additional economic wealth through the growth and 
development of our internationally competitive sectors and those sectors which 
contribute to widespread employment in our sub-regions.  
 
RES Link: This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to support the 
development of higher added-value activity in regional sectors and supports 8-11, 15, 
16, 101, 103-105. 
 
Rationale 
Market failures in growth sectors combine to limit the potential contribution these 
sectors make to the regional economy. These include imperfect information, 
institutional and coordination failures, limiting the rate of growth in the sectors for 
example, limiting the development of clusters of economic activities or sites resulting 
in a loss of potential agglomeration benefits. Our investments will aim to minimise the 
impact of these failures and stimulate future growth in these sectors.  
 
Outcomes 
Our investment programmes are intend to help the region substantially increase the 
economic wealth generated by growth sectors.  They will be targeted investments 
which will enable substantial growth in those sectors and deliver widespread benefits 
across the Northwest, such as our visitor economy, maritime, distribution and 
logistics, retail, construction, and health and care services. Increased economic 
wealth will be delivered by ensuring that priority sectors account for an increased 
proportion of the GVA of the total regional economy by;   
 

• Increasing the number of firms working in priority sectors. 

• Enabling firms to increase productivity and move up the value chain in their 
industries.  

• Facilitating and supporting activities which will raise and increase the rate of 
employment within these sectors.   

• Increasing the market share of these sectors  
 
The Agency will also ensure the region’s growth sectors are supported to effectively 
deal with unanticipated regional economic shocks. 
 
Activity 
Growth sector activities will focus on supporting sectorally significant infrastructure 
programmes including: 

• Supply chain projects to retain and enhance value within the region through 
innovative projects both up and downstream through improving performance and 
quality, stimulating competition, and overcoming barriers. 

• Work with existing investors in the region to grow, enhance, and increase both 
GVA and number of jobs.  

• Reinforcement and encouragement of cluster collaboration through networking, 
awareness raising and specialist support and improve access to information. 

Page 49



 

 19 

• Delivering priority sector projects including Mediacity:uk; the Food Resource 
Centre; the Regional Aerospace Park; and a Virtual Engineering Centre; invest in 
Attack brands and deliver Signature Projects to transform the region’s appeal to 
visitors’ 

• Supporting our delivery partners the five sub-regional Tourism Boards and 
implementing the Regional Tourism Strategy. 

• Improving a place through our public realm and the built and natural environment 
to support further private sector investment. 

 
Spatial Implications 

The growth sector objective reflects sub-regional strategies and action plans. Sub-
regional partners have identified specific spatial opportunities and areas for action in 
their Sub Regional Action Plans (SRAPs) and the Agency will continue to work 
closely with delivery organisations in each sub region. Growth sectors and the visitor 
economy have strong spatial implications because of supply chains and knowledge 
transfer which depends on close physical proximity.  For example, the Biomedical 
cluster centres on the triangle of Liverpool, Manchester, and Daresbury with virtually 
all employment in this location.  Our visitor economy activities will directly reflect 
priorities of the 5 sub-regional Tourist Boards.  Key attraction development and 
activities are focused on enabling our regional Attack brands to improve their 
performance and market penetration. 

 
 
 

Page 50



 

 20 

2.  ENTERPRISE SUPPORT     Investment: £174.6 million  
 
Objective:  
Improve the formation, survival and growth rates of enterprise: focused on 
developing the region’s enterprise culture; assisting business start up, growth and 
competitiveness; delivery of the Business Link advice service; and improving the 
availability and ease of access to business finance. 
 
RES Actions:  
This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to improve the rate of business 
start up, growth and competitiveness in the Region. It supports RES actions 1-6 and 
53.  
 
Rationale 
The rationale for our programmes in support of this objective has three elements: 
Information failures, institutional coordination failures and barriers to entry into the 
market which includes addressing the finance market gap that exists for SME’s 
particularly start ups as detailed below; 

• Imperfect information lead to lack of awareness, by existing and potential 
businesses, of the available business support and advice which in turn impacts on 
the survival or growth rates of established businesses while also hindering the 
rate of start-ups for new businesses.  

• Coordination failures result from the existence of a plethora of often conflicting, 
confusing or competing (duplicated) business support provision which either 
crowds out or confuses both potential and existing businesses.   

• Availability and access to finance for small and medium-sized enterprises is a 
barrier to the formation and growth of businesses. Public support will provide 
precision intervention to address specific areas of market failure addressing the 3 
key components in the financial equation – demand, supply and intermediation 
services. Our programmes will aim to catalyse and incentivise the availability of 
the right type of financing funds, especially to those types of businesses who do 
not traditionally access external finance, without crowding out private sector 
provision.   

• The Northwest is a diverse region, some groups or communities are still 
underrepresented within our enterprises especially SMEs and have also been 
found to face the highest level of failure of outcomes as they do not actively 
participate and share in the benefits of economic growth. Combined with a 
historical legacy of lack of enterprise awareness, aspiration, skills and capabilities 
this locks communities into a cycle, which does not foster enterprise leading to 
poverty of opportunity for individuals resulting in disadvantaged communities.  

 
Outcomes  
Our investment will be geared towards increasing the level of enterprise and the 
number of businesses in the Northwest by;  

• Promoting positive enterprising behaviours and culture in the region, leading over 
time to higher levels of productivity, business density and economic activity.  

• Assisting businesses to access information and support designed for enabling 
enterprise skills development in young people and adults, availability of up-to-date 
and relevant business support information to enable business start up and grow. 
Our outcomes will be measured annually through our evaluation programmes.  

Page 51



 

 21 

• Supporting the creation and growth of new businesses, aiming for 5100 new 
business starts, a further 2600 assists leading to 11000 net jobs created,  

• Improve the business survival rate for assisted start-ups to 80% at 36 months 
through Business Link information, diagnostic and brokerage service. 

• The Finance for Business programme will aim to improve the availability and 
access to finance for SMEs - one of the biggest barriers to formation, survival and 
growth of businesses.  

 
In addition the Agency through this objective will ensure the region effectively deal 
with unanticipated regional economic shocks and deliver an effective skills brokerage 
service. 
 
The impact of these programmes will be reflected in an increase in the business 
density per head of population; an increased number of self-employed and VAT-
registered business start-ups; increased productivity levels and strong firm survival 
rates; and an improving the proportion of new jobs generated in our Regional 
Economic Strategy priority sectors.   
 
The Business Link will provide Information, Diagnostic and Brokerage services, 
available to all businesses and individuals with very clear outputs contracted for as 
set out below.  

 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 

Customer Satisfaction 91% 91% 91% 
Total Users 96,000 103,300 104,600 
Business Users 85,400 89,700 96,000 
Intensive Assistance 5,500 7,500 9,600 
GVA Increase £305m £416m £528m 

  
Resulting Activity 
Our activity will be focused on;  

• Programmes and projects to develop an enterprise culture through skills and 
leadership and management programmes through the NW Enterprise Forum.   

• Provision of timely and relevant advice and support to individuals and businesses, 
including social enterprises, to facilitate successful business start up and growth 
through projects like the Regional Start Up & Survivability and High Growth 
Business Support.  

• Effective management of the Business Link service including the 2012 
CompeteFor service, which is an electronic brokerage system designed to 
support SMEs exploit Olympic Games related procurement opportunities.  

   
Spatial Implications    
Business Link is a universal region-wide programme incorporating targeted projects 
designed to boost the participation rates of currently underrepresented groups e.g. 
our Regional Start Up and Survivability projects.  The impact and coverage of 
Business Link will be different between sub regions depending on business need and  
socio-economic structure. The programme has been designed to take these into 
account and our impact evaluation will reflect these intra-regional differences in 
impact resulting from this intervention.    

Page 52



 

 22 

 3.  COMPETITIVE BUSINESS & INNOVATION  Investment: £87.7 million 
 
Objective 
Grow economic wealth through major improvements in business innovation and 
competitiveness, delivered through substantial programmes in science places, 
enabling knowledge transfer, commercialisation of IP, and ICT adoption.     
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to improve business 
competitiveness through innovation. It supports RES actions 12 to 14 and 20-22.  
 
Rationale 
Our innovation investments are designed to address four aspects of market failure; 
imperfect information, spillovers, barriers to entry and historic lock-in/path 
dependency.  These market failures have meant that as a region we suffer from 
relatively low innovation and ICT adoption rates which affect our competitiveness.    
 

• Imperfect information leads to low levels businesses awareness of the potential 
benefits of innovation and ICT adoption.   

• Businesses can be reluctant to invest if they believe they run the risk of ‘spill over’ 
effects, losing the benefit of their investment to competitors too soon.   Our public 
sector investment rationale is to achieve successful clusters of innovative, 
technological businesses and gain the positive spillover benefits of doing this. 

• Innovation and ICT are resource intensive, use up resources in the present while 
the benefits accrue in the longer term and are not assured. The levels of funding 
required by both are sometimes cited as a barrier to entry and prevent individual 
businesses adopting new technology and developing innovative products or 
services. Our intervention should be aimed at mitigating these barriers to entry 
and assist businesses innovate quicker. 

• Historically the Northwest has not had as widespread an SME base as other 
regions, and existing firms can be locked into a historic path of low capital 
investment.  Though private sector R&D is relatively high it is concentrated in a 
few major players, and creating a step change in the innovation and technology 
capacity of our SME business base is an important rationale for our investments. 

 
Public sector spending on research and science is an important feed into our 
ambitions for a private-sector led knowledge economy.  Currently we suffer from a 
historic path dependency of a relatively low level of public sector research and 
science investment, and we wish to reposition our research centres, higher education 
institutions and science parks to be centres of excellence to progressively attract and 
capture an increasing share of public sector research activity.   
 
Outcomes  
By 2011, we will aim to: 
 

• Increase number of innovation active firms in the region from 59% to 75%. 

• Increase the level of public sector R&D investment in the region from 3% of the 
UK total to 6%. 

• Increase level of HEI R&D in the region from 14% to 20% of the UK total. 

Page 53



 

 23 

• Increase private sector R&D spend in the region from £1.9bn to £2.3bn per 
annum. 

• Increase number of business/University interactions by 2000 per annum, enabling 
businesses to obtain consultancy services, support, or training.  

• Helping businesses adopt and exploit advanced ICT 

• Helping improve the volume, quality, reliability and accessibility of ICT advisors 
and suppliers 

• Helping fill ICT skills gaps in the labour market, both user and professional skills 

• Ensuring availability of globally competitive broadband infrastructure and services 
 
Resulting Activity 
Activity will encourage innovation through: 
 

• Working with over 400 companies in the region to embed innovation in their 
company structure, and working with over 1000 companies in the region to 
develop action plans to improve innovation rates, through a major project called 
Knowledge to innovate and funding Innovation Advisors. 

• Ongoing support to establish Daresbury Science and Innovation Campus as a 
thriving, vibrant location for public sector science and for private sector research 

• Investing in collaborative research programmes between HEI and industry which 
will offer the region a competitive advantage, specifically investing in science 
strategy implementation projects in Materials, Chemistry, Nuclear, Biohealth, and 
Aerospace 

• Ensuring knowledge transfer investment is concentrated into matching HEIF 
funding which extends the ability of Northwest universities to work with 
businesses.   

• Working with the Technology Strategy Board (TSB) to take forward 
transformational innovation projects 

 
Spatial Implications 
Merseyside and Cheshire will benefit from the creation of Liverpool Science Park and 
Daresbury Science and Innovation Campus.  The impact will be to create two new 
major sites for inward investment and regional technology company growth.    The 
majority of the investment in Manchester will go to Project Unity creating a world-
class University of Manchester. Lancashire and south Cumbria will benefit from 
development of Lancaster Science Park.  ICT support will be focused on places 
currently experiencing low rates of broadband coverage, ICT adoption and 
exploitation.   

Page 54



 

 24 

4. INTERNATIONALISATION     Investment: £18.3 million 
 
Objective 
Maximising opportunities from globalisation and emerging markets, raising 
companies’ awareness of global opportunities and risks to enable them to compete 
internationally and realising opportunities for the region from international trade and 
inward investment.   
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our RES priority action to improve the region’s international 
competitiveness by exploiting the Northwest’s comparative advantage to increase 
trade and attract foreign direct investment. It supports RES actions 17 to 19.  
 
Our Internationalisation Strategy and Action Plan (ISAP) sets out an integrated plan 
that aims to enhance our international position and ensure that we maximise the 
opportunities that globalisation offers the region whilst mitigating the risks and 
downsides that are an inevitable part of the process of change. 
 
Rationale 
Globalisation and international trade can contribute significantly to the regional 
economy.  Market failures and physical barriers exist that limit the number of, and 
extent to which, UK businesses engage in international trade and overseas firms 
invest in the region. These include imperfect information, language and cultural 
barriers, and costs and physical barriers resulting from international regulatory 
regimes.  In order to maximise opportunities emerging from the economies of high 
growth markets including China, and India we need a coordinated approach to 
ensure the region effectively and efficiently exploits the comparative advantages is 
has in the global market. 
 
Working closely with UK Trade and Investment our programme will be geared 
towards providing up-to-date information and advice to new and existing export 
businesses.  We will also work to overcome the social-network barriers in terms of 
language and cultural differences, as well as helping companies gain access to 
knowledge networks. In addition we will target new overseas investors and work with 
existing investors to embed them in the region.  These activities will be underpinned 
by a programme to promote the region’s key assets in target markets. 
 
Outcomes 
Increasing the number of firms that export and helping existing investors enter new 
markets has a direct productivity and competitiveness impact.  Foreign direct 
investment has also been proven to drive up regional productivity and close the GVA 
gap (overseas firms on average pay more per worker than average, 29%, and are 
34% more productive per worker). Inward investment adds to the stock of both the 
knowledge economy and priority sectors in the Northwest.    
 
Our outcomes include:   

• Increasing the number of inward investment projects to 150 per annum by 
2009/10 with research and development projects targeted to rise from 7% to 17% 
of the total number of projects by 2009/10. 

• Ensuring inward investment projects are positioned high in their industry’s value 
chain, with at least 25% of projects paying an average salary of over £30K.    

Page 55



 

 25 

• Raising our companies’ awareness of global opportunities to assist them to 
compete internationally, with a target of enabling an additional £50m per annum 
in export sales by 2009/10.   

 
Resulting Activity 
We will be undertaking the following types of activity:     
  

• Supporting the work of UK Trade and Investment by providing an integrated 
package of support to help companies trade internationally including additional 
sector focused trade advisors, meet the buyer events, sector missions and events 
to identify opportunities in target markets. 

• Undertake inward investment lead generation activities in target markets identified 
in the Internationalisation Strategy 

• Work with sub-regional inward investment agencies to implement investment 
projects and undertake an investor development programme with existing 
overseas investors 

• Implementing the international business marketing plan for the Northwest 
 
Spatial Implications 
The Internationalisation Strategy and Action Plan (ISAP) has a close fit with the sub-
regional strategies and action plans; all of which identify global opportunities and 
threats.  The Agency will continue to work closely with inward investment 
organisations in each sub region.  

 
 

Page 56



 

 26 

5.  LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT    Investment: £27.7 million 
 
Objective 
Develop leadership and management skills (including coaching and mentoring) within 
the current workforce 
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers our responsibilities under the RES Objective to develop 
leadership, management and enterprise skills. In particular it will deliver against 
Transformational RES Action 35 to develop world-class leadership and management 
skills. 
 
Rationale 
Investment in Leadership and Management is important for two reasons. Firstly 
leaders and managers will drive the future direction and business development of 
their business and good leaders/managers will develop the kind of innovation and 
enterprise capabilities that more Northwest businesses need to develop. Secondly a 
high quality of leadership and management will develop a culture of investing in 
workforce development and thereby release the potential of the whole workforce, a 
key theme within the RES. 
 
Information and co-ordination failures leading to supply and demand deficiencies 
mean businesses are not unlocking the true potential of their workforce, limiting 
productivity. In the Northwest, compared to the national average, there are fewer 
managers, greater shortages for management occupations and identification of 
significant skills gaps for managers. This forms the basis of our rationale for 
intervention.  On the demand side, lack of awareness (information) regarding the 
business benefits of leadership and management development lead to low take up. 
Our role should be to better inform businesses of how crucial good leadership and 
management is in unlocking the full potential of the workforce and in driving forward 
the business 
 
On the supply side, leadership and management development needs of business are 
not being met by the current provision (co-ordination). Our role should be to ensure 
the highest quality of provision (programmes and support) which meets the needs of 
businesses and stimulates thinking, business development and innovative 
behaviours.  
 
The Northwest, has historically, tended to have low levels of managed businesses, 
partly due to the historic dominance of large manufacturing companies. It was 
therefore vulnerable to a lack of both demand and supply of good leadership and 
management provision.  
 
Outcomes 
Currently the NWDA Board, together with major regional partners, is carrying out a 
review to identify priority actions to deliver workforce development and maximise the 
potential of the future workforce. An element of this is focussed on leadership and 
management and the outcomes below will be refined in the light of this work.   
 
The outcomes we are seeking to achieve through this objective are: 
 

Page 57



 

 27 

• Drive up business productivity by £200m through increasing the level of 
leadership and management skills.  

• Increase understanding within businesses of the importance and benefits of 
investment into leadership and management training, as evidenced by increased 
take up of leadership and management provision 

• Increase the proportion of those in employment in the Northwest who are in 
senior management roles, and to increase the proportion of those senior 
managers who hold an appropriate higher-level qualification. 

• Reduce the number of employers reporting managerial skills gaps and 
experiencing senior recruitment constraints.   

 
Resulting Activity 
To achieve this objective we will be undertaking the following types of activity: 

• Implementing the Northwest Leadership and Management Framework for Action 
which includes 3 main areas for action; Generating Demand; Improving Supply; 
and measuring Impact  

• Rolling out a major programme based on the successful LEAD model. 
 
Spatial Implications 
The issues of Leadership and Management affect the whole region. However as 
these programmes and support are developed, there will be close contact with each 
of the sub regions and programmes targeted as appropriate to meet specific sub 
regional needs and the needs of key sectors. 

Page 58



 

 28 

 

6. HIGHER LEVEL SKILLS DEVELOPMENT  Investment:  £65.8 million   
 
Objective  
Develop intermediate and higher-level skills in the current workforce, including 
appropriate sector skills. Our work here is complementary to the work of a wide 
range of other agencies.  
 
RES Link:  
This objective, in partnership with others, delivers on our responsibilities on RES 
actions to meet the needs of sectors and growth opportunities, invest in workforce 
development and to develop education infrastructure and the skills of the future 
workforce. In particular it delivers on Transformational RES Actions 27 (skills for 
priority sectors) and 28 (skills to maximise key growth opportunities) and well as 
Transformational RES Action 31 (develop the skills of the current workforce) and 
Transformational RES Action 38 (develop the role of HE in Cumbria and East Lancs)   
 
Rationale   
Higher levels skills are recognised as vital to the future competitiveness of the 
region’s economy and are an area where the Northwest underperforms other parts of 
the country (the Northwest is ranked 5th out of all English regions and is 2.3% behind 
the England average). Similarly within the Northwest there are significant differences 
in the performance of particular areas and sub-regions. Achieving these higher levels 
skills must be done by investing in the current workforce and well as the future 
workforce – it will deliver too little too late if all investment is focused in the future 
workforce. This is particularly true for our key growth sectors where there is a lack of 
ability to recruit especially in science and engineering. 
 
Market failures that exist in the provision of higher level skills include equity failures 
(the need to invest in provision to support the wider regeneration of key places in the 
region, given current poor performance). Other market failures include externalities 
(where development paid for by one company may benefit another as staff move) 
information failures (employers do not recognise the business benefit of investment 
in higher level skills) and the need to stimulate employer demand in line with the 
Leitch agenda. 
 
One of our roles should be to demonstrate to businesses the productivity benefits 
from investment in higher level skills. Another role should be to ensure access to 
higher level skills provision. This is particularly the case in Cumbria and East 
Lancashire where the lack of access to higher level skills development is detrimental 
to the regeneration of the economy.  The delivery of this objective will support other 
objectives, most notably the Growth Sectors objective. 
 
Outcomes 
Our objective is the development of intermediate and higher level skills in the current 
workforce as a key driver of productivity and economic growth and we will measure 
the increase in GVA/worker wherever possible via new provision. Specifically we 
intend to meet the skills needs of employers in priority sectors, and to increase the 
number of HE students in Cumbria and East Lancashire. 
 

Page 59



 

 29 

Specifically, our outcomes over 2008-2011 are, in partnership with other agencies, 
to: 
• Increase the proportion of the working age population qualified to level 3 and 

above from 43%  
• Reduce the percentage of employers reporting skills gaps from 16%  
• Increasing the percentage of employers investing in training from 64% to  
• Increase the number of FTE HE students in Cumbria and East Lancashire  
• Increasing the number of employers achieving Investors in People  
• Reduce the number of employers reporting higher level skills gaps in RES priority 

sectors  
• Improve our ranging with the English regions for higher level skills 
 
These outcomes will be further refined to reflect the recommendation of the Leitch 
Implementation Group recommendations and targets.   
 
Resulting Activity  
We will achieve this by targeted interventions focusing on developing skills in key 
places and sectors responding to the needs and demands of the sectors. The 
activities will focus on capacity building or development of flexible demand led 
support and provision, which cannot be funded by other means, and which helps 
stimulate innovative, enterprising behaviours. In particular we will be looking at 
bringing Level 3 and 4 provision into the workplace. As noted above the Board has 
set up a Task and Finish Group to consider how best to release the potential of the 
whole workforce and has identified key enterprise capabilities which need to be 
developed within supported activity. Specific actions to achieve our objectives 
include: 
• Support for the University of Cumbria and HE in Burnley 
• Supporting the Higher Level Skills Pathfinder linking Train2Gain activity with 

higher education and widening the coverage of sectors 
• Engaging further education and work-based learning providers to meet employer 

needs and supporting capacity building, responding to the demand led agenda  
• Supporting projects and programmes in RES priority sectors  
 
Spatial Implications 
There will be key impacts in Cumbria and East Lancashire where new HE provision 
will be developed. The impact will vary across sub regions, as many projects and 
programmes will be linked to the location of RES priority sectors. New projects and 
programmes will be developed in close consultation and contact with each of the sub 
regions and will be targeted as appropriate to meet specific sub regional needs and 
the needs of key sectors. 

 

Page 60



 

 30 

 

7.  SIZE OF THE WORKFORCE   Investment: £27.8 million 
 
Objective 
Through this objective the Agency aims to contribute to the growth in the size of the 
workforce including support for the work of the City Employment Strategies and 
tackling barriers to work. 
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to grow the size the regions 
workforce. It supports RES actions 41 to 46, 62, supports RES action 108, 109 and 
111. 
 
Rationale 
Economic and social imperatives dictate that the region has a strategy for ensuring 
that we maximise the proportion of the working population who are in active 
employment. Employment contributes significantly to the regional GVA and 
worklessness constrains the region’s economy in a direct way by imposing significant 
costs in terms of the loss of potential output, wealth creation or other social costs like 
incidence of crime, ill health and poverty of opportunity leading to disadvantaged 
communities.  Market failures in this area combine in complex ways that hinder or 
limit participation rates in employment within the region. These include information 
asymmetry, institutional co-ordination failures, skills gaps leading to lack of 
opportunities and poor outcomes for particular groups of individuals, localities or 
communities.  Addressing these in a coherent and efficient manner with our partners 
has the potential to improve the impact of regions efforts to achieve this objective.   
 
Our aim and role should be to provide strategic leadership and support schemes, 
which will ensure that the active inclusion and participation in economic opportunities 
are available to all the diverse communities of the region. 
 
Outcomes 
A large proportion of investment in this area will be focused to achieve the outcomes 
outlined in the three City Employment Strategies benefiting local people. We will work 
in partnership to ensure equality and diversity is taken seriously and the economic 
benefit of tackling these issues is recognised.  Appropriate outcomes will be captured 
within this section in the coming months which will include; 

• Increase percentage number of people into work. 

• Increase economic activity rates.  

• Reduce the number of people claiming Incapacity Benefit and support them back 
into work. Employment rates in key places (City Employment Strategies) and 
other locations as appropriate.  

• Employment rates for disabled, women, older people and under-represented and 
marginalised groups.  

• Increase the skills of those recently employed 

• Influencing key decision makers and stakeholders 

• Effective collaborative partnerships that can affect the direction of funding for 
activities creating sustainable growth and competitiveness for BME/Women 
owned business leading to wealth, jobs and prosperity 

• Support and increase the employability of ex-offenders. 

Page 61



 

 31 

 
Resulting Activity 
 Locally targeted activities in areas of most need. Within Greater Manchester and 
Liverpool focus will be around the City Strategy Pathways. All projects support 
people furthest from the labour market who are not supported by the mainstream 
such as Job Centre Plus. Significant projects include: 

• Growing the size and capability of the work force in Manchester 

• Liverpool Employability Pilot 

• People & Jobs Warrington & Cheshire 

• Regional Worklessness Cumbria and Lancashire 
 
There will be a range of activities also featuring secretariat support for the ED Forum 
and information alerts, however the aim is to implement the Regional and Equality 
Diversity Strategy. 
 
Spatial Implications 
The primary focus of this activity will be investing through the City Employment 
Strategies of Manchester, Liverpool and Blackburn. However, there will be other 
targeted investment in line with Regional Economic Strategy priority areas. 

 
 

Page 62



 

 32 

8. EMPLOYMENT SITES AND PREMISES   Investment: £ 88.8 million 
 
Objective 
Support the development of key employment sites and premises in the region 
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to deliver high quality employment 
sites and premises and secure new uses for brownfield land. This covers RES 
Actions 80-83, including the Transformational RES Action to deliver the designated 
Strategic Regional Sites and RES Action 82 to deliver a portfolio of sub-regionally 
important employment sites. 
 
Rationale 
Market failures exist because key sites are considered not financially viable or 
attractive for investment by the private sector. In some locations high costs of 
development (due to previous uses or contamination) and low market values mean 
that it is not financially viable for the market to develop sites. In other locations it is 
important we intervene to ensure that sites of sufficient scale/strategic importance 
are assembled to present an attractive offer to potential private sector developers 
and are secured for end uses that complement strategic aspirations. Our role should 
be to ensure sites are developed to encourage the appropriate level and type of 
investment required for sustainable economic growth. It is important to highlight that 
our intervention here is integral to the achievement of other RES objectives including 
for example the development of sites to support the growth of our internationally 
competitive sectors. 
 
Outcomes 
We are seeking to achieve two main outcomes from investing in this objective and 
these will be quantified as part of the Strategic Sites review currently underway. 
These will include;  
• ensuring we continue to  bring forward land for development and future 

employment use in particular  Grade A office accommodation 
• To deliver sites to support increased employment in the region and new jobs 

leading to an increase  in GVA and an increase in rental levels in the areas 
supported 

 
The aim of our investment will also be to attract new employment and wealth 
generating businesses onto strategic sites from outside the region and to ensure 
sustainable development of sites.  
 
Resulting Activity 
Activity will include master planning, land assembly, land remediation, provision of 
new infrastructure and gap funding of private sector development. It will result in the 
removal of barriers for investment and increased private sector investment in key 
locations, as well as supporting the development of regionally important sectors. The 
Agency is reviewing strategic and sub-regional sites in support of the above 
objectives and outcomes, the new ERDF Investment Framework, Sub-Regional 
Action Plans and sustainable  
development principles. An implementation plan will establish specific objectives for 
agreed priority sites, the nature of intervention required and proposed delivery 
mechanisms. Major projects include: 

Page 63



 

 33 

• Kingsway Rochdale 
• Wigan Bickershaw Colliery; 
• St Helens United Glass site; 
• Middlewich Mid-Point; 
• West Lakes Science Park 
• Crewe Basford 
• Wirral International Business Park 
 
Spatial Implications 
We will focus investment on RES designated strategic regional sites which are in 
major locations across the region. We will also work with all Sub-Regional 
Partnerships to identify and invest in sub-regionally important employment sites, as 
appropriate. 

 

Page 64



 

 34 

 

9. CONDITIONS FOR       Investment:  £331.6 million 
    PRIVATE SECTOR INVESTMENT  
 
Objective 
Improve the physical conditions for increased private sector investment in the key 
places in the region.  
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to support and sustain conditions 
for growth in areas with strong economic drivers (Transformational RES Actions 54-
56), as well as stimulate economic activity in areas remote from growth 
(Transformational RES Actions 47-50). It also supports the development of 
employment in or near deprived areas (Transformational RES Action 52) and the 
development of high quality public realm, green space and environmental quality 
(Transformational RES Action 119) as well as the development of brownfield land 
(RES Action 84) and Regional Parks (RES Action 116) 
 
Rationale 
The rationale for Agency intervention is based on evidence of market failure which 
manifests itself in a number of ways across the region. This includes the failure to 
utilise and develop sites for employment uses and the failure to reuse brownfield land 
which has become derelict or degraded. The causes include low market values, high 
costs of development, lack and basic amenity and infrastructure and poor quality of 
surround environment including public realm which acts as a further deterrent to 
investment. 
 
Outcomes 
The outcomes we are seeking to relate to URC objectives and these will be further 
refined and quantified once URC business plans have been analysed. These will 
include;  

• Support the achievement of URC objectives of in Liverpool through the new 
Regeneration Company, New East Manchester, Central Salford and  Blackpool,
  

• In West Cumbria, In other growth towns/cities identified in the RES, much of the 
work is still at a master-planning stage and specific outcomes will be identified 
before investments are made, but in general terms we will be seeking to increase 
the availability of new high quality floorspace and improve public realm and 
quality of place, with subsequent rises in commercial property rentals/values. 

• In Rural areas our investment will support activity in and around key centres to 
increase their contribution to GVA. This will focus on improving both the 
availability of high quality managed workspace and employment land and the role 
that the public realm plays in investment in rural areas. 

• Increase the amount of regional land available for active use via investment in 
reclaiming brownfield land and developing regional parks. 

 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

 35 

Resulting Activity 
Activity may include master-planning, land assembly and remediation, developer 
procurement and gap-funding to provide new high quality floor space, provision of 
new infrastructure and strategic green space. Activity will also include removing 
barriers to development of sites for new employment uses and creating employment 
opportunities, a quality of place, new visitor destinations and vibrant sustainable 
communities. Major projects include: 

• Ancoats, Manchester 

• Projects to capitalise upon the development of Media City, Salford. 

• Liverpool Knowledge Community Quarter 

• Liverpool New Anfield 

• Blackpool Conference/Leisure Quarter 

• Barrow Ramsden Business Park and Marina Village 

• Preston Commercial Business District and Riverworks 

• Carlisle Rickergate and Riverside 

• Public realm and improvement in the quality of the offer in Lancaster, Crewe and 
Chester 

• NEWLANDS, REVIVE, REMADE and Cumbria SEU land reclamation schemes 

• Regional Park development 
 
Spatial Implications 
Activity will be spatially focused on the City Region Centres (Manchester, Liverpool 
and Preston) as well as in the Growth Towns/Citiies and Areas Remote from Growth, 
identified in the RES. URC Business Plans, Vision Board plans and Sub-Regional 
Action Plans will drive much of this activity.   

 

Page 66



 

 36 

10. CLIMATE CHANGE &    Investment: £23.8 million 
      SUSTAINABLE CONSUPTION/ PROUCTION 
 
Objective 
Implementation of the regional Climate Change Action Plan (including energy 
security); the adoption of resource-efficient technologies and practices in companies 
and the development of facilitative policies and infrastructure 
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our RES priority actions to grow the economy in a 
sustainable manner. It supports RES actions 23-35 and 91.  
 
Rationale 
The UK’s Sustainable Development Strategy (2005) promotes a vision of “one planet 
economics”.  The inefficient use of resources is a burden on the region’s economy. In 
addition, the 2006 Stern review identified climate change as “the greatest market 
failure ever known”. The review concluded that the economic benefits of strong and 
early action to tackle climate change far outweigh the costs.  
 
The market failures preventing businesses from taking action to increase their energy 
efficiency and reduce waste production include: lack of awareness/information; the 
low cost of carbon; lack of infrastructure; leadership and co-ordination failures. These 
form the basis of our rationale for intervention.  
 
Imperfect information means businesses are ill prepared to take action because they 
do not know what to do first or where to go for advice.  Our role should be to raise 
awareness and consumer demand, simplify access to support and better inform 
businesses of measures they can take, based on best available data. There is also a 
perception of duplication of effort, lack of coordination and leadership. Our role 
should be to provide leadership, better coordinate and communicate regional activity 
in this field to identify synergistic activity, reduce duplication and promote good 
practice. 
 
The market pull for new environmental technologies is increasing as energy costs 
continue to rise and companies recognise the wider benefits of adopting the 
corporate responsibility agenda.  Our challenge is to ensure that NW businesses 
respond to this market pull through innovation and the commercial exploitation of 
new low carbon products.  Our role should be to: ensure NW businesses have 
access to high quality market intelligence in order that they can identify the 
opportunities; support innovation by proving support for R&D and facilitating 
networking between businesses and academia; and ensure that businesses have 
access to appropriate advice and finance packages in order that the innovation 
process results in real business growth and opportunities. 
 
Outcomes 
The outcomes we are seeking to achieve are those set out Climate Change Action 
Plan’s vision. By 2010 we will:  

• Increase the value of the region’s energy and environmental technologies sector.  

• Identify the most climate vulnerable areas and sectors in the region, highlighting 
the effects of unavoidable climate change.  

Page 67



 

 37 

• Promote behavioural changes through engaging, encouraging, enabling, 
exemplifying and catalysing actions which will lead to the more sustainable 
consumption and production of energy. 

• Improve the coordination of and communicate regional activity, reducing 
duplication, identifying synergistic activity and sharing good practice. 

We will assist the region towards meeting or exceeding targets set by central 
government for greenhouse gas emission reductions of 20% by 2020 and 60% by 
2050 (relative to 1990 levels). 
 
For sustainable consumption and production (SCP) we will: 

• Assist a minimum of 5,000 NW businesses with their resource efficiency by April 
2011. 

• Help NW companies save £69m through SCP by April 2011. 

• Ensure single point of access for SCP advice for NW businesses (Business Link 
Environment Connect (BLEC)) is easy to contact, comprehensive and business 
focused by March 2009. 

• Achieve a 20% increase in number of NW businesses contacting Business Link 
for environmental advice by April 2011. 

• Identify and achieve specific targets that exemplify the NW as a region committed 
to SCP by April 2011 including raw material savings, waste diverted from landfill, 
CO2 savings and water savings.  

We will ensure we meet these SCP outcome targets, initiate a minimum of four SCP 
programmes by July 2009 and work to improve attitude towards SCP in order to 
address legislative, planning and attitudinal barriers through CSR activities by 2011. 
 
Resulting Activity 
Actions and initiatives supporting delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan will 
include; Capacity support; Research & development; Initiatives to support domestic 
energy efficiency and low carbon transport; Improving low carbon skills and 
awareness; Demonstration programmes to exemplify best practise; Improved policy 
and planning frameworks for a low carbon economy; Initiatives to reducing emissions 
from high energy users and offset unavoidable emissions. 
 
Spatial Implications 
The climate change agenda is necessarily regional in its focus. However, the 
engagement with Sub-Regional Partnerships is identified in the Climate Change 
Action Plan as a critical factor in ensuring the delivery of the plan. Sustainable 
consumption and production will have a regional focus. 

 

Page 68



 

 38 

11. MARKETING THE REGION 
 
Objective 
To improve the image of the region to do businesses in and as a visitor and tourist 
destination by countering outdated negative perceptions and promote its unique 
opportunities and strengths.   
 
Investment: £27.5 million 
 
RES Link 
This objective delivers on our responsibilities under RES Actions to promote the 
image of the region (RES Action 95) and those to maximise cultural and major event 
opportunities, especially RES Actions 98 (major events) and 99 (London 2012). It 
also includes our support for RES Transformational Action 96 - Liverpool European 
Capital of Culture 2008 
 
Rationale 
The biggest market failure with regard to marketing the region is imperfect 
information. Awareness of the region and its core cities of Manchester and Liverpool 
are good, but perceptions of it (and them) as a place to do business and visit are 
mixed. The region has performed relatively well in FDI terms, however, the region’s 
business image to those outside the region is more of a weakness than a strength.  
The competition for tourists is becoming ore intense as short haul flights and new 
markets increase choice for consumers.  In order to maintain and grow visitor 
numbers the region has to undertake coordinated marketing.  Shortfalls in 
information regarding the region as a place to do business and visit have magnified 
the mixed perception of the region. Our role should be to better inform potential 
investors and visitors of the unique opportunities and strengths the Northwest has to 
offer.  
 
Hosting major events is one way to counter negatives perceptions, along with the 
direct contribution to the economy that these events can make. This is our rationale 
for supporting such events.  
 
Outcomes 
Our outcomes include: 

• A 15% improvement in perceptions of the region as a location for business 
investment between 2006 and 2009 and a 25% increase between 2006 and 2011 

• An increase in the awareness (by people outside the region) of cultural 
experiences in Liverpool and Manchester from 2% to 10% by 2010.  

• An increase in positive perceptions of the region’s beautiful landscapes and 
natural attractions from 46% to 56% in the same period 

• Major events contributing £45m to the regional economy for 2008-2011 and 
bringing in an additional 1.5m visitors.  

 
Resulting Activity 
 
We will be undertaking the following types of activity to achieve these objectives: 
 

Page 69



 

 39 

• Deliver marketing programmes that promote the region and its destination brands 
to defined national and international visitor markets - this will included all themed     
visitor marketing for the region and supporting the 5 Tourist Boards to promote 
their destinations and key messages for Manchester, Liverpool 08, Lancashire & 
Blackpool, Cumbria the Lake District, and Visit Chester & Cheshire. 

• Bid for and develop major cultural, sporting and business events to attract 
national and international visitors to our key destinations.  This will include 
supporting defined events within the Liverpool 08 Programme, Blackpool 365 and 
the Manchester International Festival amongst others.  Promote the region and its 
key sports facilities as potential training camps for Olympic teams competing in 
London 2012 and implement activity to ensure the region can benefit from the 
Games. 

• Deliver marketing programmes that change perceptions of the region's economic 
strengths and assets and the key priority RES sectors and their locations.    

 
Spatial Implications  
This objective will support to the 5 Tourist Boards to promote specific Attack brands 
of the region. It will also promote growth sectors and their locations around the 
region. This will involve regional campaigns where appropriate to gain maximum 
value for money. It will also support the delivery of key messages for Manchester 
(MIDAS) and Merseyside (TMP). A central purpose of the programme is to build 
associations between the sub regions (proximity and diversity).  

Page 70



 

 40 

6. Working Together to Deliver the RES  
 
Strong partnership between the public, private and voluntary sector is essential to 
achieving the economic ambitions of the region, and that increasingly it is NWDA’s 
role to work in partnership to ensure that priorities are set, consistent with the RES, 
at a local level, but to let local authorities and others take detailed project decisions, 
where appropriate. 
 
The Northwest has five sub-regions (Cumbria, Cheshire & Warrington, Greater 
Manchester, Lancashire and Merseyside) and since mid 2004 the Agency has been 
working closely with sub regional partnerships (Cumbria Vision, Cheshire & 
Warrington Economic Alliance, Manchester Enterprises, Lancashire Economic 
Partnership and The Mersey Partnership).  
 
During 2006/07, each sub-region developed action plans (SRAPs) that set out clear 
economic development plans and priorities for each sub region, consistent with the 
RES, and capture the majority of public and private sector investment that help 
deliver RES priorities and transformational actions.  These SRP Action Plans (which 
have been refreshed in 2007/8), together with developments such as Multi Area 
Agreements, will be increasingly important in determining individual investments, with 
NWDA agreeing overall priorities to ensure outcomes and outputs are achieved 
consistent with achieving the overall RES vision. 
 
 The Agency has important strategic regional relationships with Government Office 
for the Northwest (GONW) and the Northwest Regional Assembly (NWRA).  
Many issues are handled on a tripartite basis through a Regional Strategy Team 
(RST) that meets on a quarterly basis.  The nature of the relationship between the 
Agency and NWRA will evolve within the Corporate Plan period as 
the recommendations of SNR are implemented and the RST will be an increasingly 
important forum in this context. As set out earlier, we have always sought to align the 
regional strategies through joint working and will formally progress this as part of 
SNR implementation.  
  
NWDA has signed a protocol with NWRA around Scrutiny and fully cooperates with 
NWRA on scrutiny issues. It has proved to be a very useful process in terms of 
helping shape the implementation of the current RES and looking forward to the next 
RES or Regional Strategy. Although proposals are still being developed by NWRA, 
the successor body to NWRA is likely to involve some form of Northwest Strategic 
Partnership, based on the current Regional Assembly Executive, including a sub 
committee focused on Scrutiny. NWDA will continue to engage fully with this 
committee.  Other sub committees are likely to be established to enable LA members 
to be fully involved in strategy development. 
 
On a pan regional level, we will build on our successful arrangements for working 
through the Northern Way Growth Strategy between the three Northern RDAs, and 
sharpen the strategic focus of the Northern Way in three priority areas of transport, 
innovation in industry and increasing private sector investment. The three northern 
RDAs will collaborate on transformational actions achieving strategic pan-Northern 
benefits.  
 
 

Page 71



 

 41 

Delegation and Programme Management 
 
The 2007 Sub National Review of Economic Development and Regeneration set out 
government policy to ensure that economic development investment decisions are 
taken at the appropriate spatial level.  
 
The NWDA, in consultation with other RDAs is developing a policy framework and 
principles to enable us to work with partners to identify the most appropriate level for 
delivery of our major programmes. We are committed to adopting a strategic role with 
delivery and decision making being taken at the most appropriate level. This will 
ensure that regional objectives are met alongside those of National Policy.  The 
detailed nature of delivery for all our activity will be finalised as the programmes and 
projects set out in this plan are implemented in conjunction with partners and as 
legislation allows. We will put in place a contract management approach to ensure 
delivery of specific outcomes and outputs to contribute to our strategic objectives.  
This will be directly linked to existing governance frameworks such as LAAs, MAAs 
or Special Purpose Vehicles, where appropriate. 
 
European Programmes (including ERDF) 
 
The transfer of the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) to NWDA 
presents a major opportunity for the Agency and partners. The programme, worth 
£500m, is the largest English ERDF programme.  It has been designed to be 
consistent with the RES (as the region’s expression of the EU’s Lisbon priorities). 
 
Although very challenging in terms of spend targets, the programme presents a 
golden opportunity for integrated working between the Agency, its partners and the 
wider European regional economic development Agenda. The investment priorities 
dovetail very closely with the priorities in the RES and SRAPs. Where possible we 
will aim to streamline a whole host of disparate processes, including those which 
applicants will need to go through to access and claim resources. This should also 
further contribute to our drive to simplify business support.  
 
NWDA has been heavily involved in the development of the new ESF and ERDF 
programmes, the latter specifically designed to reflect the priorities expressed in the 
RES.  During 2008-09, the region's European Framework will be reviewed and 
adjusted to reflect progress towards a single integrated regional strategy as well as 
the EU’s agenda which is increasingly focused on further CAP reform and the 
implementation of the Lisbon Growth and Employment agenda. NWDA will also 
increasingly get involved with the Territorial Cooperation programmes. 
 
Business Support Simplification (BSSP) 
 
The NWDA is committed to delivering on the principles of the Business Support 
Simplification Programme, a Treasury led initiative managed by a central team based 
in DBERR.  
 
As part of our initial drive to achieve a simplified business support landscape in the 
Northwest, the NWDA transformed the previous Business Link operations with the 
launch of Business Link Northwest on 1 April 2007.     
  

Page 72



 

 42 

Our priorities for achieving simplification are now focussed in three key areas: 
 

• Influencing National Programme Development through activities such as the 
National Steering Group, Programme Work Streams and supporting DIUS on 
implementing integrated Skills Brokerage 

• Driving Regional Facilitation and Communications through activities such as the 
NW Simplification Steering Board, Regional Stakeholder Events and a joint 
approach with Government Office NW 

• Leadership in Transition & Implementation through activities such as internal 
project harmonisation, guiding future Strategic Investment Planning Process, 
alignment of Project Approval Process and embedding within EU Fund 
Management.  

   
Our overarching objective is to achieve a shared framework for the Region for 
collaboration, coordination and co-investment in business support activities by 2010. 
 
Lead role Responsibility 
 
The NWDA, in our Lead Role for Skills & Employment, has the ultimate objective of 
challenging, supporting and implementing Government policy that will enable growth 
and prosperity in the regions, by supporting employers in building a world-class 
workforce. This role provides a collective voice from RDAs, finding agreement on key 
policy issues and making public those positions. This then is utilised in working with 
Government Departments to influence, inform and negotiate new and emerging 
policy so that it reflects an RDA economic perspective that can respect regional 
differences. Our efforts will focus on: 
 

• Supporting and facilitating communication between Government Departments, 
partner organisations and the RDAs and to raise the profile of skills – so that it is 
seen as integral to the economic agenda. 

• Facilitate the sharing of best practice – working with employers and partners, 
celebrating what works and using this to inform future policy decisions. 

 
Key to the success of this role will be the building and maintaining of positive 
relationships, constant communication and having clarity of position that can respond 
to ever changing priorities. It will therefore be important for the Lead Role to lobby 
support for policies which are important to economic growth, and to enable 
Departments and national partners to have a voice within the RDAs through the 
NWDA and the national skills group. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Agency operates and intervenes in areas of market failure to incentivise or 
catalyse markets and attract sustainable private sector investment where it would not 
otherwise occur. These are often high-risk areas where environment and markets 
must be developed before they become attractive to private investors and other 
public sector bodies.  Our operation is underpinned by a forward looking active risk 
management system.  This describes and considers the full range of threats and 
opportunities, which could be faced, in order to support our decision making on 
project, programmes and policy. The risk profile of all our operations will continue to 

Page 73



 

 43 

be actively assessed, defined and communicated at all levels of the organisation, 
enabling the confident execution of this plan. 
 
Equality and Diversity and Opportunities for all 
 
The Agency is committed to ensuring the economic participation of all within the 
region and recognises the vibrant diversity of the Northwest’s people and 
communities as a real economic asset.  Social inclusion has been integrated and 
mainstreamed into the RES and Corporate plan, Specifically, within the RES, NWDA 
is responsible with GONW and NWRA to deliver the Regional Equality and Diversity 
Strategy. 
 
Equality and Diversity is therefore central to the region’s economic success and our 
ability to ensure that everyone is fully able to participate in our regional economy and 
society.  We will systematically apply the use of Equality Impact assessments to the 
development and appraisal of all programmes and projects supported by the agency 
and ensure that we have corporate systems and processes in place to integrate 
Equality and diversity into all our policies and programmes. Through effective 
leadership we will ensure that our staff and partners understand the economic 
importance of the equality and diversity agenda. We will also pursue some projects 
that directly support the implementation of the Regional Equality and Diversity 
Strategy. 
 
Sustainable Development  
 
The Agency has a legal duty and is committed to delivering sustainable economic 
development and meeting its legal objectives. This commitment is line with the 
government’s ambition of enabling all people to satisfy their basic needs and enjoy a 
better quality of life, without compromising the quality of life of future generations. It is 
for this reason that environmental issues and rural affairs have been integrated and 
mainstreamed into the corporate plan.  

 
The Agency will continually improve our environmental performance by putting in 
place a carbon management plan for the organisation, including assessment and 
monitoring of the carbon emissions of projects funded through the single programme. 
We will also pursue a range of projects which support the development of a low 
carbon economy, via the BREW initiative and also via the regional Climate Change 
Action Plan.   
 
Energy White Paper (EWP) and Waste Strategy 
 
The Agency working in partnership with the Government Office, Regional Assembly 
and other partners will provide the strategic lead for the regional implementation of 
the EWP, which identifies specific responsibilities.  
 

• Identify the priority technologies which will promote carbon reduction for support 
in their region;  

• Support SMEs with energy efficiency advice (as part of the Business Link 
offering); 

• Apply carbon emission standards above Building Regulations for developments 
that we support;        

Page 74



 

 44 

• Play an advocacy role for the development of large energy infrastructure projects;  

• Work as a as a key partner in the production of ‘heat maps’ to facilitate the more 
widespread adoption of Combined Heat and Power;  

• Support the introduction of innovative financing models to facilitate the 
introduction of distributed generation schemes;   

• Work with LSC, Sector Skills Councils employers etc to develop a strategy to 
ensure that the workforce has the requisite skills.  

 
NWDA plans to lead by example and has set a carbon reduction target as described 
under our objective for climate change and sustainable production and consumption.  
 
The Government’s “Waste Strategy for England” in 2007, recognised the role of 
RDAs in improving resource efficiency in businesses and encouraging the 
development and uptake of environmental technologies. NWDA will meet this role 
through the coordination of the Northwest Business Resource Efficiency and Waste 
(BREW) programme.  BREW provides support for Northwest businesses to increase 
profits by applying energy conservation, minimising and waste generation.  During 
2008/09 to 2010/11 the Agency will address the recommendations of the Waste 
Strategy, in partnership with sub-regional organisations.   

  
Climate Change 
 
NWDA has led the development and commenced implementation of the Northwest 
Climate Change Action Plan.  The Agency has formed a regional Climate Change 
Partnership to drive delivery of the Action Plan and is hosting a regional Climate 
Change Unit to coordinate activity.  Projects and programmes to deliver the Action 
Plan are detailed under the Climate Change objective.  In addition, all RDAs made 
commitments to Government in “Tackling Climate Change in the Regions” to 
strengthen our actions to address the climate change agenda. 
 

Page 75



 

 45 

7.  Evaluation and Performance Management  
 
The Agency operates a robust performance monitoring and evaluation system as 
acknowledged by the NAO’s Independent Performance Assessment (IPA) 2006.   
This will be fully reviewed in 2008/09 as we move from a role of project management 
to performance management at a strategic level as outlined earlier. We will 
implement formal programme management within the Agency.  
 
The Agency’s evaluation and performance management framework is designed to 
enable us identify whether we are achieving our stated objectives and priorities to 
help meet the Government and other partner’s expectations and identify areas for 
improving delivery and the way we deliver. It links the RES objectives with corporate 
objectives, which are in turn linked to directorate, and personal objectives.   
 
It has been designed to enable us to understand what we are trying to achieve, 
develop effective ways of delivering our priorities, knowing that we are achieving to a 
high standard and looking at how we can improve based on previous learning and 
experiences. Evaluation is central to our efforts to continually improve delivery 
through evidence based policy and decision making and is reflected within the 
Agency’s Corporate and Business Priorities.  
 
The Agency’s performance management framework can be summarised by the 
diagram 1 below. 
 
 
Diagram 1: Current Performance Management and Monitoring Framework (to be reviewed in 
light of move to programme management and other changes to NWDA role as a result of SNR) 

  
 
 

Page 76



 

 46 

Over the past year, the Agency has strengthened its internal evaluation and now has 
dedicated resources to advise and support the drawing up and commissioning of 
evaluation plans. We have also implemented a comprehensive and integrated 
evaluation process, including in depth work to improve our understanding of market 
failure and its integration into the project development and decision process. Our 
evaluation process defines three stages of evaluation; formative or ex-ante stage, 
monitoring and summative or ex-post stage. This has been designed to support 
programme and project evaluation and is underpinned by a robust appraisal process 
which rigorously reviews the rationale for the Agency’s intervention and sets out clear 
requirements for evaluating the impact of those interventions. A cross agency 
Evaluation Panel reviews the objectives of each project and programme and 
establishes at the start the baseline data and information that will be required to 
evaluation whether an intervention has had the desired impacts at the end.  
 
Evaluation reports are produced which can clearly demonstrate the achievement of 
impacts (as opposed to outputs) and importantly can demonstrate net (as opposed to 
gross) impacts. The next key phase is to ensure that these evaluation messages are 
increasingly used to influence future decision making. The Agency will be publishing 
its evaluations in support of its policy of sharing lessons and best practice.  
 
NWDA has a clear 3-year programme of evaluation, with all programmes and 
projects required to draw up formal evaluation plans setting out information 
requirements, which are IEF compliant. Evaluations from this programme will provide 
the evidence, which will inform the next impact report.  This programme is regularly 
reviewed and updated to ensure it captures all emerging findings and evidence from 
all the Agency’s programmes and projects in a comprehensive manner.  Our 
evaluation framework is backed up by an ongoing training and engagement 
programme with all staff, partners and stakeholders. 
  
The Agency has taken a leadership role in driving improvements in evaluation of 
impact across the RDA network and is also exploring with undertaking collaborative 
evaluations with other RDAs where possible.   
 
The overall performance framework is overseen by the Agency’s Risk and 
Performance Management Group which reports to the Executive Management 
Board. Progress is monitored by way of monthly output and key performance 
indicators review, quarterly business plan monitoring (including risk management and 
monitoring) and monthly financial management monitoring.  

Page 77



 

 47 

8.  Organisational Change 
 
This Corporate Plan covers a period of significant change for NWDA as it moves 
from direct delivery to a strategic, commissioning role. This will require a major 
programme of cultural and organisational change, to ensure that the agency has the 
required skills and that local delivery organisations have the required capacity. We do 
not underestimate the impact of this change and are determined to work with 
partners to implement it for the benefit of the region.  
 
This Corporate Plan represents the start of this change process. Many of our 
systems and structures will also need to change to become fit for purpose in this new 
role. NWDA has put in place an organisational change process to examine the 
implications of these changes and bring forward proposals to the Board.  
 
NWDA will increase strategic commissioning and contract management skills, further 
develop its economic policy and research function, strengthen its capacity in 
planning, transport and housing strategy and reduce its focus on project development 
and delivery.  
 
We will also work with Local Authorities to improve capacity for economic 
development delivery as outlined in SNR. This will involve the secondment or transfer 
of delivery staff to support local authority capacity improvements where appropriate. 
 
 It will also work with the private and voluntary sector to ensure that the mechanisms 
and resources are in place to ensure that they are fully engaged in the development 
of the regions single strategy. 
 
An immediate requirement is to take on board the management of ERDF. Budget 
2007 also included the transfer of Skills Brokerage to RDAs.  
 
Improvement Plan 
 
Following the publication of the Independent Performance Assessment (IPA) for the 
NWDA in 2006, the NWDA produced an IPA Improvement Plan to address the areas 
identified by the NAO that required attention. The IPA Improvement Plan includes 
nine Areas for Improvement with thirty individual actions sitting underneath. The plan 
also brings together all the various other improvement plans within the Agency into 
one consolidated plan.  
 
All actions are included in the Agency’s Internal Business Plan and progress is 
monitored as part of the quarterly business plan monitoring. The process is 
coordinated by the Corporate Performance Team and is overseen and reviewed by 
the Risk and Performance Management Group. Progress towards achievement of 
key actions identified within the Improvement Plan is on track with all milestones due 
for action having been addressed and performance is reported to the Board on a 
regular basis.   

Page 78



 

 48 

9.  Resource Plan and Estates Policy 
 
Comprehensive Spending Review 
 
The overall CSR settlement represents a 5% real-terms reduction on the Agency’s 
cash and capital baselines of 2007/08. Over and above this, Government has also 
requested further levels of administrative cost savings (see below) which will be 
moved to support Programme delivery and VFM Programme savings, bo th of which 
will be reinvested in delivering the Agency’s agreed priorities. These include the 
specific responsibilities mentioned in the CSR including managing the response to 
industrial crises or natural disasters, supporting collaboration with the Technology 
Strategy Board, sustaining the ONS’s regional presence and providing additional 
funding for the Northern Way.  
 
The Agency will utilise its existing efficiency performance management framework, 
introduced to achieve savings under the Gershon Review, to drive cost reduction 
across its overhead and Programme Support functions. 
 
Administrative Savings 
NWDA plan to achieve £4.595m sustainable administrative efficiency savings over 
the CSR period.  Baseline administrative costs of £37.571m (8.1% of total funding) 
will be reduced to a resource budget of £35.733m in 2010/11, (7.7% of total funding) 
and these targets have been incorporated into the Agency’s financial planning.   
 
Programme Savings 
Programme efficiencies will be realised through a mix of cash reductions and VFM 
savings.  Focus will be on ensuring Programmes and Projects are efficient in their 
design and implementation.   
 
The tables below show a summary of NWDA income and expenditure, as well as our 
proposed outline programme expenditure by objective. Further details can be found 
within our Strategic Investment Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



 

 49 

 

 
 

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Total

Growth sectors 53.9        55.0        56.8        165.7      

Enterprise Support 60.3        56.5        62.3        179.1      

Innovation 30.4        31.3        26.1        87.8        

Internationalisastion 6.3          6.0          6.0          18.3        

Leadership and Management 6.5          9.0          9.1          24.6        

High Level Skills Development 27.8        19.8        18.3        65.9        

Size of the Workforce 6.7          8.3          8.3          23.3        

Employment Sites and Premises 30.0        29.8        29.1        88.9        

Conditions for Private Sector Investment 131.5      107.5      92.5        331.5      

Climate Change and Sustainable Consumption 9.6          8.8          8.4          26.8        

Marketing the Region 10.4        10.0        7.1          27.5        

Other 17.2        16.2        14.5        47.9        

Total 390.6      358.2      338.5      1,087.3   

£m

Corporate Plan Allocations 2008/11

 

Income Rev Non-cash Capi EU

Rents 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7

PPP Drawdown 12.0 12.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

PPP Loan Notes & 

Partnership Profit
5.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0

Disposal of Assets 4.9 4.9 7.2 7.2 2.1 2.1

Clawback 11.2 11.2 3.4 3.4 1.9 1.9

EU Funding 0.3 6.2 6.5 - - - -

Coalfields Funding 4.3 9.2 13.5 1.6 0.2 1.8 - -

Other Income 0.7 1.4 2.1 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

Grant in Aid 184.2 11.9 195.5 391.6 183.8 11.9 190.7 386.4 179.4 11.9 186.1 377.4

EU Programme 

2007/13 Funding
212.2 212.2 86.5 86.5 72.3 72.3

TOTAL INCOME 196.2 11.9 240.4 212.2 660.7 191.9 11.9 211.5 86.5 501.8 184.8 11.9 200.1 72.3 469.1

Expenditure

Admin costs 36.7 36.7 35.7 35.7 35.7 35.7

Assembly functions 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

Non-Cash costs 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9

Economic Shock and 

Contingency 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

Capital Exp on 

Operating Assets 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

EU Administration 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

Overheads 37.2 11.9 3.5 1.2 53.8 36.2 11.9 3.5 1.2 52.8 36.2 11.9 3.5 1.2 52.8

Irrecoverable  VAT 5.3 5.3 5.5 5.5 6.7 6.7

Portfolio spend 153.7 - 236.9 390.6 150.2 - 208.0 358.2 141.9 - 196.6 338.5

EU Programme 211.0 211.0 85.3 85.3 71.1 71.1

Programme 159.0 - 236.9 211.0 606.9 155.7 - 208.0 85.3 449.0 148.6 - 196.6 71.1 416.3

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 196.2 11.9 240.4 212.2 660.7 191.9 11.9 211.5 86.5 501.8 184.8 11.9 200.1 72.3 469.1

PPP income in 2008/09 is forecast at maximum drawdown. 

This will not be required if the economic shock contingency is not required.  In future years, the regular draw down of £10m is forecast.

Admin costs agree with the CSR targets given to us by DBERR.  These are "top down" figures.

£m

2008/09

£m

2009/10

£m

Corporate Budget 2008/2011

Income and Expenditure Summary

Financial Year

2010/11

Page 80



 

 50 

Estates and Assets Policy  
 
NWDA has a portfolio of project assets and development land which enables the 
Agency to work with partners and the private sector to deliver property based 
projects.  The Agency makes development opportunities available to the private 
sector and by doing this, in addition to facilitating the physical development; the 
Agency also assists businesses in creating or safeguarding employment. 
 
The Agency’s portfolio is primarily located in Merseyside and West Cumbria where it 
works with partners such as Liverpool Vision, Liverpool Land Development Company 
and Cumbria Vision.  In addition, there are notable projects at Ancoats Urban Village, 
Kingsway Business Park and Daresbury Science Park, where the Property Team is 
working with colleagues and partners to deliver these projects. 
 
The Agency’s commercial portfolio was transferred into a joint venture, or PPP, in 
December 2006.  This is a 10-year venture where the assets are managed by the 
private sector partner to deliver outputs for the Agency.  The operation of the PPP is 
overseen by the Property Team in conjunction with the Legal and Finance Teams.  
 
The Agency has an Asset Management Strategy document addressing the 
management, performance and exit strategy for each of the assets in the portfolio.  
The document also includes an Estate Strategy covering all of the Agency’s 
operational properties. 

Page 81



 

 51 

Annexes and Tables 
 
Annex 1:  Research priorities  
 
NWDA uses and commissions research both to inform its internal policy and project 
development and to fulfil its role in strengthening the regional evidence base and how 
it is used.  The research function within the Policy Directorate exists to supply timely, 
high quality and accurate data, information and intelligence to both support the 
strategic need of the Agency (Research Team) and the evidence base needs of the 
region (Regional Intelligence Unit/ Regional Observatory). 
 
At the beginning of this corporate plan cycle, we are developing the evidence base 
for the next Single Regional Strategy, which is building on the foundations created by 
monitoring the current RES and developing a greater understanding of impact and 
evaluation. 
 
By taking a careful look at the gaps in our knowledge we have developed a Research 
programme which explores the issues raised by current RES monitoring, the risks 
and assumptions we need to monitor and the gaps in our knowledge. This 
programme has been widely discussed and agreed within the region, including 
through the RES Advisory Group. 
 
This themed regional evidence base is being gathered alongside the current 
development of a series of evidence papers, the purpose of which are to stimulate 
debate and discussion in the development of the next strategy. They re-visit the 
current RES factors, taking each factor and looking in depth at the evidence 
available, monitoring progress against outcome indicators and using wider evidence 
nationally and regionally. They will cover the need for investment, market and other 
failures and draw out any challenging questions the region should be asking itself. 
 
The Northwest Development Agency (NWDA) has five major themes of research 
which are directly related to the Regional Economic Strategy (RES), Enterprise, Skills 
and Education, People and Jobs, Infrastructure and Quality of Life 
 
These themes set out our regional priorities and remain the area of focus over the 
next 12 months. 
 
 

Page 82



 
 
 
SB/PB/CPlan07  
14 December 2007 
 
 
Mr D Parr 
Chief Executive 
Halton Borough Council 
Municipal Building 
Kingsway 
Widnes WA8 7QF 
 
 
Dear David 
 
Consultation on the Northwest Regional Development Agency’s Corporate 
Plan for 2008/09 to 2010/11 
 
In September 2006, Government published the Comprehensive Spending Review.  
This set NWDA’s budget and responsibilities for the next 3 years.   
 
We are now drawing up our Corporate Plan, which sets out in more detail our plans 
for delivering our contribution to the Regional Economic Strategy and our wider remit 
on behalf of the Northwest for the period from 2008/09 to 2010/11.   
 
We would be very grateful for your input to the development of this plan before it is 
presented to Ministers in March 2008.   
 
Our new Corporate Plan will cover a period of considerable change for NWDA.   In 
its joint submission to the Comprehensive Spending Review the Northwest argued 
for a number of significant improvements to how Economic Development priorities 
are agreed and delivered.  I am pleased that Government has recognised these in 
the new expectations and responsibilities which it has set out for NWDA from 2009 
onwards: 
 
- Working on the region’s behalf to prepare an integrated strategy, bringing 

together housing, planning, transport and economic priorities to provide an 
integrated approach to economic, social and environmental priorities; 

 
- An overarching regional sustainable growth objective, to ensure investment 

can be as focussed as possible; 
 
- Increased delegation of project approval decisions to the most appropriate 

local level, with delivery contracted on the basis of agreed programmes and 
priorities; 

 

Page 83



- Responsibility for overseeing the delivery of further simplification of business 
support, with strong regional delivery of business support products to ensure 
high standards and lack of duplication. 

 
NWDA has also agreed tough efficiency targets with Government.  As a private 
sector led organisation we are committed to continuous business improvement.  
Over the lifetime of this plan we will do more, but with less resource.  This will require 
strong prioritisation and tough choices.  This plan sets a clear strategic direction to 
enable us to achieve this. 
 
Our plan sets out 11 strategic objectives, with funding and outcomes identified for 
each. These objectives, and the resources we are proposing for each, are based on 
our RES commitments and up to date evidence of the progress of the regional 
economy. They are strategic priorities and beyond stating where projects and 
programmes are already approved it does make individual project commitments or 
decisions. 
 
The Agency’s Board has considered this draft plan and would welcome specific 
feedback and comments on it by no later than Friday 1st February 2008 in order 
that we can submit the revised plan to Government and obtain Ministerial approval 
by the end of March. 
 
A copy of the draft plan is attached and can also be found on the Agency’s website 
at www.nwda.co.uk.  If you have any particular queries please do not hesitate to 
contact Samuel Kabiswa at NWDA (samuel.kabiswa@nwda.co.uk) in the first 
instance.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven Broomhead 
Chief Executive 
 

 
 
 

Page 84


	Agenda
	3a Out-Borough School Transport
	3b Strategy for Support and Intervention for Schools in Halton
	Strategy for Support and Intervention - Appendix A

	4a CPA Corporate Assessment and Joint Area Review of Children and Young People
	5a North West Development Agency (NWDA) Corporate Plan 2008
	NWDA Corp Plan - App1.doc
	NWDA Corp Plan - App2.doc


